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Independent Auditor's Report
To the shareholders of Anuva Investments (Pty) Ltd
Opinion
We have audited the Annual Financial Statements of Anuva Investments (Pty) Ltd set out on pages 11 to 32, which
comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at 28 February 2017, and the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the Annual Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.
In our opinion, the Annual Financial Statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Anuva
Investments (Pty) Ltd as at 28 February 2017, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 71 of 2008.
Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Annual Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the company in accordance with the Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors Code of
Professional Conduct for Registered Auditors (IRBA Code) and other independence requirements applicable to performing
audits of financial statements in South Africa. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IRBA
Code and in accordance with other ethical requirements applicable to performing audits in South Africa. The IRBA Code is
consistent with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (Parts
A and B). We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
Other information
The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Directors' Report as required by
the Companies Act 71 of 2008 of South Africa, which we obtained prior to the date of this report. Other information does not
include the Annual Financial Statements and our auditor's report thereon.
Our opinion on the Annual Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express an audit
opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the Annual Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Annual Financial Statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.
Responsibilities of the directors for the Annual Financial Statements
The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Annual Financial Statements in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 71 of 2008, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of Annual Financial Statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the Annual Financial Statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Independent Auditor's Report
Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the Annual Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Annual Financial Statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these Annual Financial Statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Annual Financial Statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
company’s internal control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the Annual
Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the company to cease to continue as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Annual Financial Statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Annual Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.
We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

__________________________________
CW Middel CA (SA) RA
Partner
Middel & Partners
Chartered Accountants (SA)
Registered Auditors

27 October 2017
Fairways Office Park, Block 5
Niblick Way
Somerset Mall
Somerset West
7130

Non-Independent Practitioner's Compilation Report
To the shareholders of Anuva Investments (Pty) Ltd
Compilation engagement
We have compiled the annual financial statements of Anuva Investments (Pty) Ltd, as set out on pages 11 to 32, based on
the information provided. These annual financial statements comprise the Statement of Financial Position of Anuva
Investments (Pty) Ltd as at 28 February 2017, the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, Statement
of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.
Directors' responsibility for the Annual Financial Statements
The company’s directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these annual financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act, No.71 of 2008,
and for such internal control as the directors determine necessary to enable the preparation of annual financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Non-Independent Practitioner's responsibility
We performed this compilation engagement in accordance with International Standard on Related Services 4410 (Revised),
Compilation Engagements. Neill Michael Hobbs, the signatory of the non-independent practitioner's compilation report, is
not independent, as he is a director of Anuva Investments (Pty) Ltd.
We have applied our expertise in accounting and financial reporting to assist you in the preparation and presentation of
these annual financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.
These annual financial statements and the accuracy and completeness of the information used to compile them are the
directors' responsibility.
Since a compilation engagement is not an assurance engagement, we are not required to verify the accuracy or
completeness of the information provided to us to compile these annual financial statements. Accordingly, we do not
express an audit opinion or a review conclusion on whether these annual financial statements are prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards.
Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
The company’s annual financial statements were not prepared within 6 months of the financial year end, as required by
section 30 of the Companies Act, No. 71 of 2008.

NM Hobbs CA (S.A.)
Hobbs Sinclair Incorporated
Chartered Accountants (S.A.)

27 October 2017
8the Floor Letterstedt House
Main Road
Claremont
Cape Town
7708

Anuva Investments (Pty) Ltd
(Registration number 2014/196830/07)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 28 February 2017

Directors' Report
The directors have pleasure in submitting their report on the annual financial statements of Anuva Investments (Pty) Ltd for the
year ended 28 February 2017.
1.

Incorporation

The company was incorporated on 1 October 2014 and obtained its certificate to commence business on the same day. The
company is a Venture Capital Company which was incorporated in accordance with section 12J of Income Tax Act No.58 of
1962 and is registered with the Financial Advisory and Intermediaries Act No.37 of 2002.
2.

Nature of business

Anuva Investments (Pty) Ltd was incorporated in South Africa with interests in the investment holding industry. The company
operates in South Africa.
IFRS 10 - Investment Entity
The company is an investment company in terms of IFRS 10.27 & 10.28. The directors have determined that the company
meets the criteria in IFRS 10.27 as follows:
it obtains funds from more than one investor for the purpose of providing those investors with investment
management services;
it commits to its investors that its business purpose is to invest funds solely for returns from capital appreciation,
investment income, or both;
it measures and evaluates the performance of substantially all investments on a fair value basis.
The company is thus not required to present consolidated annual financial statements but instead measures investments in
subsidiaries and associates at fair value, with fair value changes recognised in profit or loss, in accordance with IFRS 9, on
the basis that the company is an investment entity.
Section 12J of the Income Tax Act No. 58 of 1962 - Venture Capital Company
The company is also a registered Venture Capital Company in terms of section 12J(5) of the Income Tax Act No. 58 of 1962
(the Tax Act). All South African taxpayers are entitled to a 100% tax deduction on monies invested into the company, in
terms of section 12J(2) of the Tax Act. The company must invest in qualifying companies defined in section 12(1) of the Tax
Act and further meet the provisions of section 12J of the Tax Act. The initiative has been set up by government and SARS to
grow investments into small and medium sized enterprises, as a way of stimulating the economy and creating jobs.
There have been no material changes to the nature of the company's business from the prior period except to the extent that
directors have charged subsidiaries for their services, including due diligence fees performed on investments.
3.

Going concern

The directors believe that the company has adequate financial resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable future
and accordingly the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The directors have satisfied
themselves that the company is in a sound financial position and that it has access to sufficient borrowing facilities to meet its
foreseeable cash requirements. The directors are not aware of any new material changes that may adversely impact the
company. The directors are also not aware of any material non-compliance with statutory or regulatory requirements or of any
pending changes to legislation which may affect the company.
4.

Liquidity and solvency

The directors have performed, and satisfied, the required liquidity and solvency tests required by the Companies Act, No. 71
of 2008 during the period under review.
5.

Review of financial results and activities

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the
requirements of the Companies Act 71 of 2008. The accounting policies have been applied consistently compared to the
prior year.
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Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 28 February 2017

Directors' Report
The company was capitalised in February 2015 and the results for the period ended 28 February 2017 marks the second year
of trading performance. During the year, management placed emphasis on the consolidation of investments made during the
year and prior periods whilst solidifying strategies, extracting value from current investments and undergoing vigorous due
diligence processes on investments to be made in the 2018 financial year.
A net profit after tax of R 861,701 for the year ended 28 February 2017 was recorded, off a capital base of R33 315 489 at the
beginning of the year which grew to R184 605 786 by year end. This represented a decrease from the net profit after tax of the
prior year of R13,744,777, which was mainly attributable to the fair value adjustment made to Wilenri Appliance Services (Pty)
Ltd. The perceived decrease in performance is expected since management has agreed that the fair values remained
reasonable and should remain unadjusted for the year ended 28 February 2017.
During the period under review the directorate focused on:
broadening the revenue base of Wilenri Appliance Services (Pty) Ltd through the expansion of the company's
activities and increasing its annuity revenue base. Although, this added to the company's expenditure, revenues
have increased substantially post balance sheet date and the company is reporting consistent profits;
concluding the acquisition of a minority stake in Medac (Pty) Ltd, positive management intervention in operations
and consolidation of shareholder's relationships;
establishing Mastercare Medical Supplies (Pty) Ltd, which after set-up costs, has recorded a small loss for the
period under review;
concluding negotiations with NuMobile (Pty) Ltd, resulting in an investment on 8 March 2017. This investment has
shown encouraging results in the post balance sheet period;
initiated negotiations with Cape Mohair (Pty) Ltd resulting in a due diligence investigation and the completion of
an investment into the company post balance sheet date.
It is the directorate’s expectation that the benefits of the activities conducted during the 2017 financial year will be realised
during the 2018 financial year.
6.

Interests acquired in subsidiaries

Mastercare Medical Supplies (Pty) Ltd
On 22 August 2016, the company acquired a 69% shareholding, for R3 000 000, in Mastercare Medical Supplies (Pty) Ltd a
company that has acquired the exclusive distribution rights to high quality medical bracing and medical support products
made by Medac (Pty) Ltd, an associate of the company, see note 4.
Mastercare Medical Supplies (Pty) Ltd reported a net loss after tax of R8 982 for the 7 month period to 28 February 2017.
Wilenri Appliance Services (Pty) Ltd
The company owns a 69% shareholding in Wilenri Appliance Services (Pty) Ltd and Mastercare Appliances (Pty) Ltd, a
100% owned subsidiary of Wilenri Appliance Services (Pty) Ltd, acquired 13 August 2015 that is in the repairing of
household electronic appliances industry.
The Wilenri Appliance Services (Pty) Ltd group reported a net loss after tax of R1 722 449 for the year ended 28 February
2017 (2016: R65 425 378 net profit after tax). Although the performance has decreased from 2016 it can be mainly
attributed to impairment of a tax receivable of R508 046 and interest paid of R710 503 on loans owing to the company. Also,
the extraordinary results of 2016 can be substantiated by the compromise of creditor claims and realisation of a major tax
loss asset, which directly affect the decrease in perceived performance.
Further, the focus of the period was to prepare for trading opportunities to be made in the 2018 financial year and explore
initiatives to grow the contracted annuity revenue. Management is expecting a significant upward turn in profits for the 2018
financial year despite it remaining under business rescue at the date of this report.
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Directors' Report
7.

Interests in associates and joint arrangements

Medac (Pty) Ltd
On 29 November 2016, the company acquired a 20% shareholding in Medac (Pty) Ltd for a consideration of R8 000 000,
being R4 600 000 for shares and R3 400 000 for sales claims. Medac (Pty) Ltd operates in the manufacturing of high quality
medical bracing and medical support products industry. Additionally, prior to the finalisation of this report the directorate had
commenced negotiations relating to the company's current shareholding in Medac (Pty) Ltd.

8.

Dividends

The company declared and paid a total of R4 949 974 ordinary dividends during the period as follows:

Class A dividends

Dividend
(Rand)

No. of shares Dividend per
Average
share
Dividend Yield
(cents)
(%)
1,453,579
2,131,348
68.00
4.06
2,506,400
4,712,295
72.46
4.30

Interim
Final

3,959,979

-

-

8.36

An interim dividend of 68.20 cents per share was declared on 30 September 2016 and paid on 18 October 2016, to Class A
shareholders on record at 31 August 2016, amounting to R1 453 579 (2016: R 2 400 000).
A further final dividend of 72.46 cents per share was declared on 23 February 2017 and paid on 28 February 2017 to Class
A shareholders on record at 30 November 2017 and 19 January 2017. The total final dividend amounted to R2 506 400
(2016: R2 000 000).
Class B dividends

Dividend
(Rand)

No. of shares Dividend per
share
(cents)
363,395
20,000,000
2.00
626,600
20,000,000
3.00

Interim
Final

989,995

-

-

An interim dividend of 1.82 cents per share was declared on 30 September 2016 and paid on 18 October 2016, to Class B
shareholders on record at 31 August 2016 amounting to R 363 394 (2016: R 600 000).
A further final dividend of 3.13 cents per share was declared on 23 February 2017 and paid on 28 February 2017 to Class B
shareholders on record on 30 November 2017 and 19 January 2017, respectively. The total final dividend amounted to R626
600 (2016: R0).
9.

Share capital
2017
2016
Number of shares
20,000,000
20,000,000
20,000,000
20,000,000
20,000,000
20,000,000

Authorised
Class A no par value ordinary shares
Class B no par value ordinary shares
Unclassified shares

Issued
Class A no par value ordinary shares
Class B no par value ordinary shares

2017
R
184,605,786
570,000

2016
R
33,315,489
570,000

2017
2016
Number of shares
10,605,394
2,113,753
20,000,000
20,000,000

185,175,786

33,885,489

30,605,394

22,113,753

Refer to note 10 of the annual financial statements for details of the movement in authorised and issued share capital.
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Directors' Report
10. Directorate
The directors in office at the date of this report are as follows:
Directors
Michael Eric Hainebach
Neill Michael Hobbs
Dermott Harold Worthington-Fitnum
Johan Slabber

Designation
Non-executive
Executive
Executive
Executive

Nationality
South African
South African
South African
South African

Changes
No change
No change
No change
Appointed 1 August 2016,
resigned 13 October 2017

11. Directors' interests in shares
As at 28 February 2017, the directors of the company held direct and indirect beneficial interests in 71% (2016: 98%) of its
issued ordinary shares, as set out below.
Interests in shares
Directors
Michael Eric Hainebach
Dermott Harold Worthington-Fitnum
Neill Michael Hobbs

2017
Direct
1,846,023
5,371
-

2016
Direct
1,626,988
-

2017
Indirect

2016
Indirect

20,000,000

20,000,000

1,851,394

1,626,988

20,000,000

20,000,000

12. Directors' interests in contracts
Neill Michael Hobbs is the Senior Business Rescue Practitioner appointed to Wilenri Appliance Services (Pty) Ltd who is still
under business rescue at the date of this report. Neill Michael Hobbs is a director and shareholder of Hobbs Sinclair
Business Solutions (Pty) Ltd who invoices Wilenri Appliance Services (Pty) Ltd for business rescue services rendered by
himself and the employees of the company. Johan Slabber is also a director of Wilenri Appliance Services (Pty) Ltd and
receives director fees.
Neill Michael Hobbs and Johan Slabber are the directors of Mastercare Medical Supplies (Pty) Ltd.
Neill Michael Hobbs has also been appointed as a director of Medac (Pty) Ltd.
13. Holding company
The company's holding company is Hobbs Sinclair Business Solutions (Pty) Ltd which holds 65% (2016: 90%) of the
company's equity.
14. Events after the reporting period
Investment in Mastercare Mobile (Pty) Ltd
On 8 March 2017, the company entered into a joint venture agreement with NuMobile (Pty) Ltd and Mastercare Mobile (Pty)
Ltd, a company that offers smartphone contracts to permanent blue-collar workers by obtaining a pay-roll deduction
administered by their employer. The company is committed to provide loan capital, of up to R22 000 000 in the joint venture
period ending August 2017, to test the assumptions of the due diligence report, with the option of converting the loan to equity.
Investment in Cape Mohair (Pty) Ltd
On 1 August 2017, the company acquired a 46% shareholding in Cape Mohair (Pty) Ltd for a consideration of R12 743 600.
Cape Mohair (Pty) Ltd produces mohair products with a core focus on sock manufacturing.
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Directors' Report
Conversion to public company and name change
On 13 July 2017 the company adopted a new Memorandum of Incorporation, converted to a public company and changed its
name to Anuva Investments Limited. Consequently, the registration number changed to 2014/196830/06.
The company made this conversion to:
eliminate the pre-emptive rights on the sale of the company's shares;
create additional share classes for asset specific investments; and
alleviate provisions that hindered the effective operations of the company.
Breach of the Companies Act No.71 of 2008
In February 2017, the company sponsored an advertising campaign on Moneyweb Today in order to provide investors with
the opportunity of investing in the company and taking advantage of the Section 12J tax deduction.
The company contravened Section 99(2) of the Act by offering shares to the public without a registered prospectus as
required by the Companies Act. At the time of the advertisement the professional advice received was that a private
company may offer its shares without a registered prospectus provided the minimum subscription value exceeded
R100 000, in terms of Section 96(2)(a) of the Act.
The Companies and Intellectual Property Commission (CIPC) notified the company that the minimum value is in fact R1 000
000, in accordance with Section 45(2) of the Companies Regulations, and that the company is required to publish a
registered prospectus should it wish to issue shares for a lessor consideration amount. The following remedial actions were
taken after year end:
all share transactions resulting from the Moneyweb Today advertising campaign were reversed; and
placed a public advertisement in the same manner, frequency and using the same method as in which the
company’s securities were marketed.
The company had no intention to fall foul of the regulations and will be registering a prospectus in accordance with the
Companies Act, in due course. CIPC accepted the company's representations and the remedial action taken above.
15. Auditors
Middel & Partners continued in office as auditors for the company for 2017.
At the AGM, the shareholders will be requested to reappoint Middel & Partners as the independent external auditors of the
company and to confirm Mr CW Middel CA (SA) RA as the designated lead audit partner for the 2018 financial year.
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Statement of Financial Position as at 28 February 2017
Figures in Rand

Notes

2017

2016

Assets
Non-Current Assets
Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in associates
Loans to group companies
Loans to shareholders

3
4
5
6

Current Assets
Loans to group companies
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

5
8
9

Total Assets

31,766,473
4,860,827
4,683,238
410,449

28,766,473
5,510,489
-

41,720,987

34,276,962

16,680,651
1,752,195
133,843,028

2,795,233
1,007,672
9,101,406

152,275,874

12,904,311

193,996,861

47,181,273

182,869,881
8,325,917
861,701
(4,949,975)

33,532,479
(418,860)
13,744,777
(5,000,000)

187,107,524

41,858,396

3,974,090

1,221,124
3,765,076

3,974,090

4,986,200

1,652,153
546,094
20,000
697,000

27,677
300,000
9,000
-

2,915,247

336,677

6,889,337

5,322,877

193,996,861

47,181,273

Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Share capital
Accumulated income (loss)
Net income (loss) for the period
Ordinary dividends

10

Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Loans from shareholders
Deferred tax

6
11

Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables
Current tax payable
Provisions
Dividend payable

12
13
14
15

Total Liabilities
Total Equity and Liabilities
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Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
Figures in Rand

Notes

Revenue
Other operating income
Fair value gains on investments in subsidiaries
Operating expenses

16
17
18

2017

2016

2,362,870
462,417
(1,687,999)

756,748
980
17,766,473
(851,449)
17,672,752
(9)

Operating profit (loss)
Finance costs

21

1,137,288
(21,759)

Profit (loss) before taxation
Taxation

22

1,115,529
(253,828)

17,672,743
(3,927,966)

861,701

13,744,777

Profit (loss) for the year
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year

12

-

-

861,701

13,744,777

Anuva Investments (Pty) Ltd
(Registration number 2014/196830/07)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 28 February 2017

Statement of Changes in Equity
Figures in Rand
Balance at 01 March 2015

Share capital Capital raising
fee

Total share
capital

Retained
income
(418,860)

Total equity

16,235,000

-

16,235,000

15,816,140

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income

-

-

-

13,744,777
-

13,744,777
-

Total comprehensive loss for the year

-

-

-

13,744,777

13,744,777

Issue of shares
Ordinary dividends

17,650,489
-

(353,010)
-

17,297,479
-

(5,000,000)

17,297,479
(5,000,000)

Total contributions by and distributions to
owners of company recognised directly in
equity

17,650,489

(353,010)

17,297,479

(5,000,000)

12,297,479

Balance at 01 March 2016

33,885,489

(353,010)

33,532,479

8,325,917

41,858,396

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income

-

-

-

861,701
-

861,701
-

Total comprehensive loss for the year

-

-

-

861,701

861,701

Issue of shares
Ordinary dividends

151,290,297
-

(1,952,895)
-

149,337,402
-

(4,949,975)

149,337,402
(4,949,975)

Total contributions by and distributions to
owners of company recognised directly in
equity

151,290,297

(1,952,895)

149,337,402

(4,949,975)

144,387,427

Balance at 28 February 2017

185,175,786

(2,305,905)

182,869,881

4,237,643

187,107,524

Note

10

10

13
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Statement of Cash Flows
Figures in Rand

Notes

2017

2016

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash receipts from customers
Cash paid to suppliers and employees

450,000
(2,641,606)

(379,466)

(2,191,606)
1,305,172
(21,759)
(518,037)

(379,466)
546,447
(9)
(360,000)

(1,426,230)

(193,028)

Movement in investments (incl subs, JVs & Assoc)
Loans advanced to group companies
Movement in other financial assets

(11,240,000)
(9,409,835)
830,800

(11,000,000)
(1,234,469)
(750,463)

Net cash from investing activities

(19,819,035)

(12,984,932)

148,057,135
(1,308,390)
(761,858)

22,092,328
(177,962)
-

Net cash from financing activities

145,986,887

21,914,366

Total cash movement for the year
Cash at the beginning of the year

124,741,622
9,101,406

8,736,406
365,000

133,843,028

9,101,406

23

Cash used in operations
Interest income
Finance costs
Tax paid

24

Net cash from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
10

Proceeds on share issue
Repayment of shareholder loan
Dividends paid

25

9

Total cash at end of the year

14

Anuva Investments (Pty) Ltd
(Registration number 2014/196830/07)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 28 February 2017

Accounting Policies
1.

Significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these annual financial statements are set out below.
1.1 Basis of preparation
The annual financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis in accordance with, and in compliance
with, International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") and International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee
("IFRIC") interpretations issued and effective at the time of preparing these annual financial statements and the Companies
Act 71 of 2008 of South Africa, as amended.
The annual financial statements have been prepared on the historic cost convention, unless otherwise stated in the
accounting policies which follow and incorporate the principal accounting policies set out below. They are presented in
Rand, which is the company's functional currency.
These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period.
1.2 Investment entity

The company has not presented consolidated annual financials statements as the company is an investment company in
terms of IFRS 10.27 & 10.28. The directors have determined that the company meets the criteria in IFRS 10.27 as follows:
it obtains funds from more than one investor for the purpose of providing those investors with investment
management services;
it commits to its investors that its business purpose is to invest funds solely for returns from capital appreciation,
investment income, or both;
it measures and evaluates the performance of substantially all investments on a fair value basis.
The company is also a registered Venture Capital Company in terms of section 12J(5) of the Income Tax Act No. 58 of 1962
(the Tax Act) and is registered with the Financial Advisory and Intermediaries Act No.37 of 2002. All South African taxpayers
are entitled to a 100% tax deduction on monies invested into the company, in terms of section 12J(2) of the Tax Act. The
company must invest in qualifying companies defined in section 12(1) of the Tax Act and further meet the provisions of
section 12J of the Tax Act.
Investments in subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities) which are controlled by the company. The company has control of an
entity when it is exposed to or has rights to variable returns from involvement with the entity and it has the ability to affect
those returns through use of its power over the entity.
Investments in subsidiaries are carried at fair value with fair value changes recognised in profit or loss, in accordance with
IFRS 9, on the basis that the company is an investment entity.
Investments in associates
An associate is an entity over which the group has significant influence and which is neither a subsidiary nor a joint
arrangement. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but is not control or joint control over those policies. It generally accompanies a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of
the voting rights.
IAS 28 applies to all entities that are investors with joint control of, or significant influence over, an investee (associate or
joint venture) in terms of IAS 28(2011).2. An entity must apply the equity method when accounting for investments in
associates and joint ventures.
However, in accordance with IAS 28(2011).17 the entity is exempt from applying the equity method since it is exempt from
preparing consolidated financial statements with reference to IFRS 10.
Investments in associates or joint ventures are therefore measured at fair value through profit or loss in accordance with
IFRS 9.
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1.3 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty
The preparation of annual financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management, from time to time, to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. These estimates and associated assumptions are based on experience and various other factors that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.
Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.
Fair value estimation and financial instruments measured at fair value
Several assets and liabilities of the company are either measured at fair value or disclosure is made of their fair values.
The directors of the company make judgements as to whether there is observable data indicating a change in fair value of
the investment each year, with reference to a range of valuation techniques and methodology.
The company has determined the fair value of the investments in subsidiaries and associates using valuation techniques
and inputs based on information available.
Impairment testing
The company reviews and tests the carrying value of assets when events or changes in circumstances suggest that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. When such indicators exist, management determine the recoverable amount by
performing value in use and fair value calculations. These calculations require the use of estimates and assumptions. When
it is not possible to determine the recoverable amount for an individual asset, management assesses the recoverable
amount for the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.
Provisions
Provisions are inherently based on assumptions and estimates using the best information available. Additional disclosure of
these estimates of provisions are included in note 14.
Taxation
Judgement is required in determining the provision for income taxes due to the complexity of legislation. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The company recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.
Also, the company recognises the net future tax benefit related to deferred income tax assets to the extent that it is probable
that the deductible temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future. Assessing the recoverability of deferred
income tax assets requires the company to make significant estimates related to expectations of future taxable income.
Estimates of future taxable income are based on forecast cash flows from operations and the application of existing tax laws
in each jurisdiction. To the extent that future cash flows and taxable income differ significantly from estimates, the ability of
the company to realise the net deferred tax assets recorded at the end of the reporting period could be impacted.
1.4 Financial instruments
Classification
The company classifies financial assets and financial liabilities into the following categories:
Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through other comprehensive income
Loans and receivables
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
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1.4 Financial instruments (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial instruments are recognised initially when the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.
The company classifies financial instruments, or their component parts, on initial recognition as a financial asset, a financial
liability or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement.
Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value, except for equity investments for which a fair value is not
determinable, which are measured at cost.
All financial instruments are initially measured at fair value plus or minus, in the case of a financial asset or financial liability
not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs.
Subsequent measurement
Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently measured at fair value, with gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value being included in profit or loss for the period.
Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss as part of other income when the company's right to receive payment is
established.
Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method, less accumulated
impairment losses.
Financial liabilities at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
Derecognition
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Fair value determination
The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid prices. If the market for a financial asset is not active (and for
unlisted securities), the company establishes fair value by using a range of valuation techniques. These include the use of
recent arm’s length transactions, reference to other instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow
analysis, and other available techniques in accordance with IFRS13.
Impairment of financial assets
At each reporting date the company assesses all financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, to
determine whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets has been impaired.
Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.
Loans to (from) group companies
Loans to group companies are classified as loans and receivables.
Loans from group companies are classified as financial liabilities measured at amortised cost.
Loans to shareholders, directors, managers and employees
These financial assets are classified as loans and receivables.
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1.4 Financial instruments (continued)
Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables are measured at initial recognition at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate method. Appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts are recognised in profit or
loss when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that
the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments are considered indicators
that the trade receivable is impaired. The allowance recognised is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition.
Trade and other receivables are classified as loans and receivables.
Trade and other payables
Trade payables are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and other short-term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. These are
initially and subsequently recorded at fair value.
1.5 Tax
Current tax assets and liabilities
Current tax for current and prior periods is, to the extent unpaid, recognised as a liability. If the amount already paid in
respect of current and prior periods exceeds the amount due for those periods, the excess is recognised as an asset.
Current tax liabilities (assets) for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be paid to
(recovered from) the tax authorities, using the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities
A deferred tax liability is recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except to the extent that the deferred tax liability
arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which at the time of the transaction, affects neither
accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss).
A deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised. A deferred tax asset is not recognised when it
arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction at the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting
profit nor taxable profit (tax loss).
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.
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1.5 Tax (continued)
Tax expenses
Current and deferred taxes are recognised as income or an expense and included in profit or loss for the period, except to
the extent that the tax arises from:
a transaction or event which is recognised, in the same or a different period, to other comprehensive income, or
a business combination.
Current tax and deferred taxes are charged or credited to other comprehensive income if the tax relates to items that are
credited or charged, in the same or a different period, to other comprehensive income.
Current tax and deferred taxes are charged or credited directly to equity if the tax relates to items that are credited or
charged, in the same or a different period, directly in equity.
1.6 Impairment of assets
The company assesses at each end of the reporting period whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If
any such indication exists, the company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.
1.7 Share capital and equity
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities.
1.8 Provisions and contingencies
Provisions are recognised when:
the company has a present obligation as a result of a past event;
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation;
and
a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.
The amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation.
1.9 Revenue
When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue associated with
the transaction is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the end of the reporting period.
The outcome of a transaction can be estimated reliably when all the following conditions are satisfied:
the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the company;
the stage of completion of the transaction at the end of the reporting period can be measured reliably; and
the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured reliably.
When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably, revenue shall be
recognised only to the extent of the expenses recognised that are recoverable.
Rendering of management services by directors is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the services
rendered to subsidiaries and associates.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents the amounts receivable for
goods and services provided in the normal course of business, net of trade discounts and volume rebates, and value added
tax.
Interest is recognised, in profit or loss, using the effective interest rate method.
Dividends are recognised, in profit or loss, when the company’s right to receive payment has been established.
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Figures in Rand
2.

2017

2016

New Standards and Interpretations

2.1 Standards and Interpretations early adopted
The company has chosen to early adopt the following standards and interpretations:
Standard/ Interpretation:

Effective date:
Years beginning on or
after
01 January 2018

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

Amendments to IAS 12: Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets 01 January 2017
for Unrealised Losses
3.

Expected impact:
Unlikely there will be a
material impact.
Unlikely there will be a
material impact.

Investment in subsidiaries
% holding % holding
2017
2016

Wilenri Appliance Services (Pty) Ltd
Mastercare Medical Supplies (Pty) Ltd

69.00 % 69.00 %
69.00 %
-%

20

Fair value
2017

Fair value
2016

28,766,473
3,000,000

28,766,473
-

31,766,473

28,766,473
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Figures in Rand
3.

2017

2016

Investment in subsidiaries (continued)

Wilenri Appliance Services (Pty) Ltd
On 13 August 2015, the company acquired 9 000 000 ordinary no par value shares, representing 69% of the ordinary share
capital of Wilenri Appliance Services (Pty) Ltd, for R9 000 000 and 2 000 000 10% preference shares participating in 13,3%
of ordinary dividends for R2 000 000. Consequently, the company also acquired Mastercare Appliances (Pty) Ltd a 100%
owned subsidiary of Wilenri Appliance Services (Pty) Ltd.
The carrying amount of the subsidiary is shown at fair value, with changes recognised in profit and loss.
Ordinary no par value shares' fair value
The company has considered a range of values from different valuation techniques and made key assumptions in applying
various valuation techniques in determining the fair value of the ordinary shares. The total fair value of the subsidiary was
evaluated at R38 791 989 of which 69% is attributable to the company and represents the fair value of R26 766 473
reflected at the financial year end. Further, this represents no change from the fair value determined at 29 February 2016.
The cost approach and book net asset value technique was used to determine the fair value of assets at the end of the
reporting period. The cost to replace the service capacity of an asset and cost to settle liabilities were determined and also
used as a basis of valuation.
Additionally, the company valued the debit order book owned by Wilenri Appliance Services (Pty) Ltd as an intangible asset
using the income approach to determine the adjusted net asset value as the fair value of the subsidiary. The future cash
flows were converted to a single amount using the following key assumptions:
- 6-year discount period
- 8.53% after-tax discount rate
- 8% growth rate
10% Preference shares', participating in 13,3% of ordinary dividends, fair value
The company has valued the preference shares at transaction price on date of acquisition and remains at the fair value at
year end. The company has determined that there are no factors present that indicate a significant change in fair value from
the transaction date.
Mastercare Medical (Pty) Ltd
On 22 August 2016, the company acquired 69 ordinary no par value shares, representing a 69% shareholding of the
ordinary share capital of Mastercare Medical (Pty) Ltd, for R3 000 000.
The carrying amount of the subsidiary is shown at fair value, with changes recognised in profit and loss.
Ordinary no par value shares' fair value
The company has considered a range of values from different valuation techniques and determined the fair value of the
subsidiary at R3 000 000 in accordance with International Private Equity and Venture Capital Valuation Guidelines and the
Price of Recent Investment valuation technique, since there has not been a significant time lapse to disqualify the validity of
the Price of Recent Investment valuation technique and there are no factors that indicate a significant change in fair value
from the investment date to the end of the financial year end. Further, the fair value implies a total fair value of the subsidiary
at R4 347 826 of which the company owns 69%.
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Figures in Rand
3.

2017

2016

Investment in subsidiaries (continued)

Reconciliation of fair value gain on revaluation of investment in subsidiaries
Wilenri Appliance Services (Pty) Ltd

Cost
9,000,000
2,000,000

Fair value
gain 2016
17,766,473
-

Fair value
2016
26,766,473
2,000,000

Ordinary no par value shares
10% Preference shares participating in
13,3% of ordinary dividends

11,000,000

17,766,473

28,766,473

Mastercare Medical Supplies (Pty) Ltd

Cost

Ordinary no par value shares

3,000,000

4.

Fair value
gain 2017
-

Fair value
2017
26,766,473
2,000,000

-

28,766,473

-

Fair value
2017
3,000,000

Fair value
gain 2017

Investments in associates

Medac (Pty) Ltd

% holding
2017
20.00 %

% holding
2016
-%

Fair value
2017
4,600,000

Fair value
2016
-

Medac (Pty) Ltd
On 29 November 2016 the company acquired 20% of the ordinary share capital in Medac (Pty) Ltd for a consideration of R8
000 000, being R4 600 000 for shares and R3 400 000 for sales claims or loan account.
The carrying amount of the associate is shown at fair value, with changes recognised in profit and loss.
Ordinary no par value shares fair value
The company has considered a range of values from different valuation techniques and determined the fair value of the
associate at R4 600 000 in accordance with International Private Equity and Venture Capital Valuation Guidelines and the
Price of Recent Investment valuation technique, since there has not been a significant time lapse to disqualify the validity of
the Price of Recent Investment valuation technique and there are no factors that indicate a significant change in fair value
from the investment date to the end of the financial year end. Further, the fair value implies a total fair value of the subsidiary
at R26 000 000 of which the company owns 20%.
Sales claims or loan account fair value
The R3 400 000 sales claims or loan account purchased is shown as a loan receivable and measured at amortised cost,
refer to note 5.
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Figures in Rand

2017

2016

Wilenri Appliance Services (Pty) Ltd (Cession)
The amount represents outstanding fees so ceeded by cessionary agreement
concluded on 26 February 2016. The loan is unsecured, bears interest at 1% per
month and is repayable in installments of R100 000, commencing 1 September 2016.

6,483,238

6,110,489

Wilenri Appliance Services (Pty) Ltd
Interest accrues daily and is capitalised monthly at prime plus 2% per month, from 22
December 2016. The loan is repayable in full within 30 days notice or 28 February
2018, whichever occurs first.

2,648,446

-

Wilenri Appliance Services (Pty) Ltd
Interest accrues daily and is capitalised monthly at 1% per month, from 27 November
2015. The loan is repayable in full within 180 days notice. Interest is also payable
monthly.

1,162,114

1,031,317

Wilenri Appliance Services (Pty) Ltd
Interest accrues and is capitalised monthly at prime plus 2% per month, from 7
September 2016. The loan is repayable in full within 180 days notice. Interest is also
payable monthly.

1,061,085

-

Wilenri Appliance Services (Pty) Ltd
Interest accrues monthly and is capitalised daily at 1% per month from 1 March 2017.
The loan is repayable on 23 May 2017.

525,000

-

Wilenri Appliance Services (Pty) Ltd
Interest accrues daily and is capitalised monthly at 2% per month, from 19 November
2015. The loan is repayable in full within 60 days notice. Interest is also payable
monthly.

338,901

267,221

Wilenri Appliance Services (Pty) Ltd
Interest accrues and is capitalised daily at prime plus 2% per month from 27 May
2016. The loan is repayable in full within 180 days notice or on 1 October 2019,
whichever occurs first.

329,581

-

5,302,434

100,000

17,850,799

7,509,027

Medac (Pty) Ltd
The loan is secured on the proceeds from the DTI 2015 Production Incentive. The loan
is payable 12 months after the issue date, namely 29 November 2015. Interest is
payable at 2% per month in arrears.

113,090

796,695

Medac (Pty) Ltd
Sales claims or loan account purchased in the subscription agreement concluded with
Medac (Pty) Ltd on 23 November 2016. The loan is interest free, unsecured and has
no terms of repayment.

3,400,000

-

3,513,090

796,695

5.

Loans to (from) group companies

Subsidiaries

Wilenri Appliance Services (Pty) Ltd
The loan is interest free, unsecured and has no terms of repayment.

Associates
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Figures in Rand
5.

2017

2016

Loans to (from) group companies (continued)

Non-current assets
Current assets

4,683,238
16,680,651

5,510,489
2,795,233

21,363,889

8,305,722

Loans to group companies past due but not impaired
Loans to group companies which are past due but remain recoverable based on management's representations are not
considered to be impaired. At 28 February 2017, R 113,090 loans to associates were past due but not impaired, since an
amount was received in respect of the settlement of this loan after financial year end. Further, at 28 February 2017, interest
payments on R9 045 338 loans to subsidiaries were not met, however no notice has been given to repay the capital
amounts and partial repayment occurs after financial year end.
6.

Loans to (from) shareholders

Hobbs Sinclair Business Solutions (Pty) Ltd
This loan is unsecured, bears no interest and has no fixed terms of repayment.
Further, the intention of management is to not recall this loan within the next 12
months.

410,449

(1,221,124)

Non-current assets
Non-current liabilities

410,449
-

(1,221,124)

410,449

(1,221,124)

7.

Other financial assets

The company acquired a 20% holding in Medac (Pty) Ltd during the year and thus the loan, to Medac (Pty) Ltd, was
reclassified from other financial assets to loans to group companies under the associates sub-heading. Please refer to note
5 for details on comparitives.
8.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables
VAT
Other receivables

69,499
182,696
1,500,000

1,007,672

1,752,195

1,007,672

Other receivables relate to amounts receivable from investors for which the equity instruments have been issued. The asset
has arisen due to a delay in the transfer of funds refecting in the company's bank account or amounts receivable at year
end.
Fair value of trade and other receivables
The carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximate its fair value due to the short-term nature of these
instruments.
9.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:
Bank balances
Short-term deposits
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3,600,497
130,242,531

2,793,959
6,307,447

133,843,028
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Figures in Rand

2017

2016

10. Share capital
No. of shares No. of shares
Authorised
20,000,000 Class A no par value shares
20,000,000 Class B no par value shares
20,000,000 Unclassified shares

20,000,000
20,000,000
20,000,000

20,000,000
20,000,000
20,000,000

60,000,000

60,000,000

No. of shares No. of shares
Reconciliation of number of Class A no par value ordinary shares issued:
Opening balance - Class A no par value
Issue of shares – Class A no par value ordinary shares
Issue of shares to directors – Class A no par value ordinary shares

2,113,752
8,267,236
224,406

1,023,856
462,908
626,988

10,605,394

2,113,752

No. of shares No. of shares
Reconciliation of number of Class B no par value ordinary shares issued:
Opening balance - Class B no par value

20,000,000

20,000,000

20,000,000

20,000,000

R
Issued
10 605 394 Class A no par value ordinary shares at an average of R17.41 per share
20,000,000 Class B no par value ordinary shares at R0.03 per share
Capital raising fees written off against equity

184,605,786
570,000
(2,305,905)

33,315,489
570,000
(353,010)

182,869,881

33,532,479

R
Reconciliation of Class A share capital issued:
Opening balance
Issue of Class A no par value shares at R15.30 per share
Issue of Class A no par value shares at R17.05 per share
Issue of Class A no par value shares at R18.90 per share

R

33,315,489
84,805,142
66,485,155

15,665,000
8,150,489
9,500,000
-

184,605,786

33,315,489

R
Reconciliation of Class B share capital issued:
Opening balance

R

R

570,000

570,000

570,000

570,000

Rights attached to shares
Class A
Each "A" ordinary share ranks pari passu in all respects and entitles the holder to:
to be entered in the securities register of the company as the registered holder of an ordinary share;
one vote for every "A" ordinary share held by the investor shareholder;
the rights to attend, participate in, speak at and vote on any matter to be considered at, any meeting of ordinary
shareholders;
to receive a portion of 80% (eighty per cent) of the total amount of any distribution declared by the company, if
and when declared on the ordinary shares, in proportion to the investor shares held by each of them;
the right to receive a portion of the total net assets of the company remaining upon its liquidation;
any other rights attaching to the ordinary share in terms of the Companies Act No 71 of 2008 or any other law.
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2017

2016

10. Share capital (continued)
Class B
Each "B" ordinary share ranks pari passu in all respects and entitles the holder to:
to be entered in the securities register of the company as the registered holder of an ordinary share, designated
as a "B" ordinary share;
one vote in respect of each "B" ordinary share held by the holder;
the rights to attend, participate in, speak at and vote on any matter to be considered at any meeting of ordinary
shareholders;
to receive a portion of 20% (twenty per cent) of the total amount of any distribution declared by the company, if
and when declared on the ordinary shares, in proportion to the founder shares held by each of them;
the right to receive a portion of the total net assets of the company remaining upon its liquidation;
any other rights attaching to the ordinary share in terms of the Companies Act No 71 of 2008 or any other law.
11. Deferred tax
Deferred tax liability
Fair value gain on revaluation of investment in subsidiaries

(3,979,690)

(3,979,690)

Deferred tax asset
Provision for audit fees
Tax losses available for set off against future taxable income

5,600
-

214,614

Total deferred tax asset

5,600

214,614

The deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liability relate to income tax in the same jurisdiction, and the law allows net
settlement. Therefore, they have been offset in the statement of financial position as follows:
Deferred tax liability
Deferred tax asset

(3,979,690)
5,600

(3,979,690)
214,614

Total net deferred tax asset (liability)

(3,974,090)

(3,765,076)

(3,765,076)
(214,614)
-

162,890
51,724
(3,979,690)

Reconciliation of net deferred tax liability
At beginning of year
Increases (decrease) in tax loss available for set off against future taxable income
Taxable / (deductible) temporary difference movement of fair value on investment in
subsidiaries
Taxable / (deductible) temporary difference on audit fees provision

5,600
(3,974,090)

(3,765,076)

Use and sales rate
The deferred tax rate applied to the fair value adjustments is determined by the expected manner of recovery. Where the
expected recovery of the financial assets is through sale the capital gains tax rate of 22.4% (2016: 22.4%) is used. If the
expected manner of recovery is through indefinite use the normal tax rate of 28% (2016: 28%) is applied.
12. Trade and other payables
Trade payables
Payroll taxes payable
Directors fees payable

26

1,630,404
16,992
4,757

27,677
-

1,652,153

27,677
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2017

2016

12. Trade and other payables (continued)
Fair value of trade and other payables
The carrying amount of trade and other payables approximate its fair value due to the short-term nature of these
instruments.
13. Current tax payable
Current tax payable
Normal tax
Dividends witholding tax

44,814
501,280

300,000

546,094

300,000

Dividends witholding tax, calculated at 20%, remains outstanding at year end with respect to final dividends declared and
paid.
14. Provisions
Reconciliation of provisions - 2017
Opening
balance
9,000

Provision for audit fees

Additions

Reversed
during the year
20,000
(9,000)

Total
20,000

The provisions include amounts estimated in respect of auditing work, completed by Middel & Partners, not yet invoiced.
15. Dividend payable
Dividends payable
Final dividends payable

697,000

-

200,000
147,194
1,305,172
710,504

100,000
46,232
546,447
64,069

2,362,870

756,748

462,417
-

980

462,417

980

16. Revenue
Dividends received from subsidaries
Interest received from associates
Interest received from bank
Interest received from subsidiaries

17. Other operating income
Rendering of management services by directors
Reversal of provisions

Rendering of management services by directors relate to amounts received from subsidiaries and associates to which the
directors of the company rendered management services.
18. Fair value gains on investments in subsidiaries
Fair value gains (losses)
Investment in subsidiaries

-
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19. Auditor's remuneration
Auditors fees

21,588

9,000

710,000
7,100

60,000
-

717,100

60,000

Shareholders
Bank overdraft

21,759
-

9

Total finance costs

21,759

9

44,814

-

20. Employee costs
Employee costs
Basic
SDL

21. Finance costs

22. Taxation
Major components of the tax (income) expense
Current
Local income tax - current period
Deferred
Benefit of unrecognised tax loss
Movement in audit fees provision
Fair value gain on revaluation of investment in subsidiaries

214,614
(5,600)
-

(51,724)
3,979,690

209,014

3,927,966

253,828

3,927,966

1,115,529

17,672,743

Tax at the applicable tax rate of 28% (2016: 28%)

312,348

4,948,368

Tax effect of adjustments on taxable income
Permanent differences (Local Dividends)
Permanent differences (CGT 20% exemption)
Prior period under provision in temporary differences

(56,000)
(2,520)

Reconciliation of the tax expense
Reconciliation between accounting profit and tax expense.
Accounting (loss) profit

253,828
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23. Cash used in operations
(Loss) profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Accounting fees
Reversal of provisions
Interest & dividend income
Finance costs
Fair value gain on revaluation of investment in subsidiaries
Administration and management fees
Trade receivables: proceeds on share issue
Capital raising fees paid
Changes in working capital:
Trade and other receivables
Trade and other payables

1,115,529

17,672,743

(2,362,871)
21,759
(800,000)

240,000
(980)
(756,748)
9
(17,766,473)
207,055
(14,292,328)
-

(195,113)
29,090

14,292,328
24,928

(2,191,606)

(379,466)

(300,000)
(44,814)
(719,317)
546,094

(660,000)
300,000

(518,037)

(360,000)

(4,949,975)
719,317
2,381,805
989,995
(600,000)
697,000

(5,000,000)
660,000
3,740,000
600,000
-

24. Tax paid
Balance at beginning of the year
Current tax for the year recognised in profit or loss
Dividends witholding tax payable
Balance at end of the year

25. Dividends paid
Dividends declared
Dividends witholding tax
Dividends reinvested in share capital
Dividends converted to loan account
Prior period dividends paid
Balance at end of the year

(761,858)
26. Related parties
`

Relationships
Holding company
Subsidiaries
Associates
Shareholder with significant influence

Hobbs Sinclair Business Solutions (Pty) Ltd
Refer to note 3
Refer to note 4
Hobbs Sinclair Business Solutions (Pty) Ltd
Brett William Dawson
Michael Hainebach
Dermott Harold Worthington-Fitnum
Neill Michael Hobbs
Michael Hainebach
Johan Slabber, resigned 13 October 2017
Hobbs Sinclair Advisory (Pty) Ltd

Members of key management

Other related entities of key management
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26. Related parties (continued)
Related party balances
Loan accounts - Owing (to) by related parties
Hobbs Sinclair Business Solutions (Pty) Ltd

410,449

Amounts included in Trade receivable (Trade Payable) regarding related parties
Hobbs Sinclair Advisory (Pty) Ltd
Mastercare Medical Supplies (Pty) Ltd
Johan Slabber
Michael Hainebach - Director fees
Neill Michael Hobbs - Director fees

492,219
12,417
(25,000)
(2,378)
(2,378)

Loans - Owing by (to) related parties
Wilenri Appliance Services (Pty) Ltd
Medac (Pty) Ltd

17,850,799
3,513,090

Amounts included in (Dividends Payable) regarding related parties
Brett William Dawson
Investment in group companies
Wilenri Appliance Services (Pty) Ltd
Medac (Pty) Ltd
Mastercare Medical Supplies (Pty) ltd

(680,000)

28,766,473
4,860,827
3,000,000

(1,221,124)

-

7,509,027
796,695

-

28,766,473
-

Related party transactions
Interest paid to (received from) related parties
Michael Hainebach
Wilenri Appliance Services (Pty) Ltd
Medac (Pty) Ltd

21,759
(710,504)
(147,194)

(64,069)
(46,232)

Dividends paid to (received by) related parties
Hobbs Sinclair Business Solutions (Pty) Ltd
Brett William Dawson
Wilenri Appliance Services (Pty) Ltd

989,995
680,000
(200,000)

600,000
(100,000)

Rendering of management services by directors paid to (received by) related
parties
Johan Slabber
Neill Michael Hobbs
Medac (Pty) Ltd
Mastercare Medical Supplies (Pty) Ltd

487,417
120,000
(300,000)
(162,417)

-

Capital raising fees paid to (received from) related parties
Hobbs Sinclair Business Solutions (Pty) Ltd

152,895

353,010

Accounting fees paid to (received from) related parties
Hobbs Sinclair Advisory (Pty) Ltd

214,543

240,000

Secretarial fees paid to (received from) related parties
Hobbs Sinclair Advisory (Pty) Ltd

-

4,365

Administration fees paid to (received from) related parties
Hobbs Sinclair Business Solutions (Pty) Ltd

-

207,055

717,100

60,000

Compensation to directors and other key management
Short-term employee benefits
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27. Directors' emoluments
Executive
2017

Dermott Harold Worthington-Fitnum
Neill Michael Hobbs
Johan Slabber

Emoluments Directors' fees Directors' fees
for services as
directors' of
subsidiaries
270,000
120,000
220,000
487,417
120,000
607,417

490,000

Total

270,000
340,000
607,417

120,000

1,217,417

Directors' fees
20,000
20,000
20,000

Total
20,000
20,000
20,000

60,000

60,000

Directors' fees
220,000

Total
220,000

2016

Dermott Harold Worthington-Fitnum
Neill Michael Hobbs
Michael Eric Hainebach

Non-executive
2017

Michael Eric Hainebach
Securities issued
2017
Class of
security
Michael Eric Hainebach
Dermott Harold Worthington-Fitnum

A
A

Number of
Consideration
securities
paid
issued
219,035
4,037,435
5,371
101,512

2016
Class of
security
Michael Eric Hainebach

A
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28. Risk management
Capital risk management
The company's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the company's ability to continue as a going concern in
order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.
The capital structure of the company consists of debt, which includes the borrowings (excluding derivative financial liabilities)
disclosed in notes 5 & 6 cash and cash equivalents disclosed in note 9, and equity as disclosed in the statement of financial
position.
There are no externally imposed capital requirements.
There have been no changes to what the entity manages as capital, the strategy for capital maintenance or externally
imposed capital requirements from the previous year.
Financial risk management
The company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
Liquidity risk
The company’s risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments and that the company will not
be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far
as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed
conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the company's reputation.
The company manages liquidity risk through an ongoing review of future commitments and credit facilities. The board of
directors further monitors liquidity risk by forecasting future cash inflows and outflows and reviewing actual cash flows during
monthly management meetings.
Interest rate risk
As the company has significant interest-bearing assets, the company’s income is dependent of changes in market interest
rates since the assets' interest rates are fixed to the South African prime lending rate. Refer to note 5.
The company and board of directors monitor the change in prime lending rates to determine the effect on income, however
no formal process has been determined to mitigate against such changes in interest rates.
Further, the company has fixed deposits and obtain quotes from leading banks to obtain the most competitive interest rates.
Credit risk
Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents and trade debtors. The company only deposits cash with
major banks with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any one counter-party. Further, the company reports on
outstanding debtors on a monthly basis after which, outsanding trade debtors are contacted for settlement of outstanding
amounts. Management is of the opinion that no material trade debtors are uncollectable at the financial year end.
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Notes

Revenue
Dividends received from subsidaries
Interest received from bank
Interest received from associates
Interest received from subsidiaries
16
Other operating income
Rendering of management services by directors
Reversal of provisions
17
Other operating gains
Fair value gain on revaluation of investment in subsidiaries
Operating expenses
Accounting fees
Administration and management fees
Auditors remuneration
Bank charges
Compliance costs
Consulting and professional fees
Employee costs
Insurance
Key individual costs
Secretarial fees
Operating profit (loss)
Finance costs

19

20

21

Profit (loss) before taxation
Taxation
Profit (loss) for the year

22

2017

2016

200,000
1,305,172
147,194
710,504

100,000
546,447
46,232
64,069

2,362,870

756,748

462,417
-

980

462,417

980

-

17,766,473

(214,543)
(21,588)
(4,043)
(18,402)
(462,417)
(717,100)
(11,506)
(238,400)
-

(240,000)
(207,055)
(9,000)
(2,449)
(19,024)
(60,000)
(13,156)
(296,400)
(4,365)

(1,687,999)

(851,449)

1,137,288
(21,759)

17,672,752
(9)

1,115,529

17,672,743

(253,828)

(3,927,966)

861,701

13,744,777
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Tax Computation
Figures in Rand

2017

Net profit per income statement

1,115,529

Permanent differences (Non-deductible/Non taxable items)
Local dividends s10(1)(k)(i)
Temporary differences
Reversal of provision for audit fees current year
Reversal of provisions for audit fees previously raised / prior year

(200,000)

20,000
(9,000)
11,000

Calculated tax profit for the year
Assessed loss brought forward
Taxable income for 2017
Tax thereon @ 28% in the Rand

926,529
(766,480)
160,049
44,814

Reconciliation of tax balance
Tax owing/(prepaid) for the current year:
Normal tax
Per calculation
1st provisional payment
2nd provisional payment
Other payments
Withholding Tax
Charge
Payment

44,814
-

719,317
(218,037)
501,280

Amount owing/(prepaid) at the end of year

546,094
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Directors' Responsibilities and Approval
The directors are required by the Companies Act 71 of 2008, to maintain adequate accounting records and are responsible for
the content and integrity of the consolidated annual financial statements and related financial information included in this
report. It is their responsibility to ensure that the consolidated annual financial statements fairly present the state of affairs of
the group as at the end of the financial period and the results of its operations and cash flows for the period then ended, in
conformity with the International Financial Reporting Standard for Small and Medium-sized Entities.
The consolidated annual financial statements are prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standard
for Small and Medium-sized Entities and are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by
reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates.
The directors acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established by the
group and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the directors to meet these
responsibilities, the board of directors sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or loss in a cost
effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective
accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored
throughout the group and all employees are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the group’s business
is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk management in the group is
on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the group. While operating risk cannot be
fully eliminated, the group endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical
behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined procedures and constraints.
The directors are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system of internal
control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the consolidated
annual financial statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss.
The directors have reviewed the group’s cash flow forecast for the period to 28 February 2018 and, in the light of this review
and the current financial position, they are satisfied that the group has or has access to adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future.
On 7 May 2012 the Wilenri Appliance Services (Pty) Ltd entered into Business Rescue in terms of Chapter 6 of the Companies
Act No.71 of 2008 as the company was financially distressed in terms of section 129 of the Companies Act. Mr. Neill Hobbs
was appointed as the company's business rescue practitioner.
The independent reviewer is responsible for independently reviewing and reporting on the group's consolidated annual financial
statements. The consolidated annual financial statements have been examined by the group's independent reviewer and their
report is presented on page 3.
The consolidated annual financial statements set out on pages 5 to 28, which have been prepared on the going concern basis,
ere signed on
o its behalf
beha by:
were approved by the board of directors on 27 October 2017 and were

WH Rabie
Director
ctor

HF Krugerr
Director

NM Hobbs
Senior
or Business Rescue
Re
Practitoner

2

Independent Reviewer's Report
To the shareholders of Wilenri Appliance Services (Pty) Ltd Group
We have reviewed the Consolidated Annual Financial Statements of Wilenri Appliance Services (Pty) Ltd Group, set out on
pages 7 to 26, which comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at 28 February 2017 and the Statement of
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the period then ended, and the
notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
Directors' Responsibility for the Consolidated Annual Financial Statements
The company’s directors are responsible for the preparationof the Consolidated Annual Financial Statements in accordance
with the International Financial Reporting Standard for Small and Medium-sized Entities and the requirements of the
Companies Act 71 of 2008, and for such internal control as the directors determine necessary to enable the preparation of
Consolidated Annual Financial Statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Independent Reviewer Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on these Consolidated Annual Financial Statements. We conducted our review
in accordance with International Standards on Review Engagements (ISRE) 2400 (Revised), Engagements to Review
Financial Statements. ISRE 2400 (Revised) requires us to conclude whether anything has come to our attention that causes
us to believe that the Consolidated Annual Financial Statements, taken as a whole, are not prepared in all material respects
in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework. This Standard also requires us to comply with relevant
ethical requirements.
A review of Consolidated Annual Financial Statements in accordance with ISRE 2400 (Revised) is a limited assurance
engagement. The independent reviewer performs procedures, primarily consisting of making inquiries of management and
others within the entity, as appropriate, and applying analytical procedures, and evaluates the evidence obtained.
The procedures performed in a review are substantially less than those performed in an audit conducted in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion on these Consolidated Annual
Financial Statements.
Unqualified Conclusion
Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that these Consolidated Annual Financial
Statements do not present fairly, in all material respects the financial position of Wilenri Appliance Services (Pty) Ltd Group
as at 28 February 2017, and its financial performance and cash flows for the period then ended in accordance with the
International Financial Reporting Standard for Small and Medium-sized Entities and the requirements of the Companies Act
71 of 2008.

__________________________________
_
____
__
____
__
____
__
____
__
________
__
____
__
____
__
____
__
____
__
____
__
____
__
____
__
____
__
CW
C
W Middel CA (SA) RA
Partner
Middel & Partners
Chartered Accountants (S.A.)
Registered Auditors

27 October 2017
Fairways Office Park, Block 5
Niblick Way
Somerset Mall
Somerset West
7130

Non-Independent Practitioner's Compilation Report
To the shareholders of Wilenri Appliance Services (Pty) Ltd
Compilation engagement
We have compiled the consolidated annual financial statements of Wilenri Appliance Services (Pty) Ltd Group, as set out on
pages 7 to 26, based on the information provided. These consolidated annual financial statements comprise the statement
of financial position of Wilenri Appliance Services (Pty) Ltd Group as at 28 February 2017, the statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the period then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.
Directors' responsibility for the Annual Financial Statements
The company’s directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated annual financial
statements in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standard for Small and Medium-sized Entities so
amended in 2015 which permits early application, and the requirements of the Companies Act, No.71 of 2008, and for such
internal control as the directors determine necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated annual financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Non-Independent Practitioner's responsibility
We performed this compilation engagement in accordance with International Standard on Related Services 4410 (Revised),
Compilation Engagements. Neill Michael Hobbs, the signatory of the non-independent practitioner's compilation report, is
not independent, as he is the appointed business rescue practitioner of Wilenri Appliance Services (Pty) Ltd.
We have applied our expertise in accounting and financial reporting to assist you in the preparation and presentation of
these consolidated annual financial statements in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standard for Small
and Medium-sized Entities.
Since a compilation engagement is not an assurance engagement, we are not required to verify the accuracy or
completeness of the information you provided to us to compile these consolidated annual financial statements. Accordingly,
we do not express an audit opinion or a review conclusion on whether these consolidated annual financial statements are
prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standard for Small and Medium-sized Entities.
Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
The Group's consolidated annual financial statements were not prepared within 6 months of the financial year end, as
required by section 30 of the Companies Act, No. 71 of 2008. The consolidated annual financial statements were not audited
in terms of the provisions of section 30(2)(b) of the Companies Act, No. 71 of 2008.
Emphasis of matter
On 7 May 2012 Wilenri Appliance Services (Pty) Ltd entered into Business Rescue in terms of Chapter 6 of the Companies
Act No.71 of 2008 as the company was financially distressed in terms of section 129 of the Companies Act. At the issue
date of these financial statements the company remains under business rescue.

NM Hobbs CA (S.A.) RA
Hobbs Sinclair Incorporated
Chartered Accountants (S.A.)

27 October 2017
8th Floor Letterstedt House
Main Road
Claremont
Cape Town
7708
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Directors' Report
The directors have pleasure in submitting their report on the consolidated annual financial statements of Wilenri Appliance
Services (Pty) Ltd and the group for the period ended 28 February 2017.
1.

Incorporation

Wilenri Appliance Services (Pty) Ltd was incorporated on 17 October 2000 and obtained its certificate to commence business
on the same day. Wilenri Appliance Services acquired a 100% stake in Mastercare Appliances (Pty) Ltd on 20 February 2013,
which was incorporated on 6 November 2012.
2.

Nature of business

Wilenri Appliance Services (Pty) Ltd is the holding company of Mastercare Appliances (Pty) Ltd and was incorporated in South
Africa with interests in the repair services industry, namely the repairing of household electronic appliances. The activities of
the group are undertaken through the company and its principal subsidiary. The group operates in South Africa.
During the current year, the group expanded its business activities to the resale of mobile electronics and assets acquired in
liquidation proceedings.
3.

Change of year end & prior year comparitive figures

On 12 November 2015 the year end of Wilenri Appliance Services (Pty) Ltd was changed from 31 March 2016 to 29 February
2016. The prior year reporting period is 11 months long and its figures are not comparable to the current reporting period of 12
months.
4.

Review of financial results and activities

The consolidated annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standard for Small and Medium-sized Entities and the requirements of the Companies Act 71 of 2008. The accounting policies
have been applied consistently compared to the prior period.
Full details of the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the group are set out in these consolidated annual
financial statements.
5.

Going concern

The directors believe that the group has adequate financial resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable future and
accordingly the consolidated annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The directors have
satisfied themselves that the group is in a sound financial position and that it has access to sufficient borrowing facilities to
meet its foreseeable cash requirements. The directors are not aware of any new material changes that may adversely impact
the group. The directors are also not aware of any material non-compliance with statutory or regulatory requirements or of any
pending changes to legislation which may affect the group.
On 7 May 2012 Wilenri Appliance Services (Pty) Ltd entered into Business Rescue in terms of Chapter 6 of the Companies Act
No.71 of 2008 as the company was financially distressed in terms of section 129 of the Companies Act. Mr Neill Hobbs was
appointed as the company's business rescue practitioner. At the reporting date Wilenri Appliance Services (Pty) Ltd remains
under business rescue.
At the date of this report the company is trading at a profit and meeting its obligations in terms of the business rescue plan
approved on 29 April 2014.
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Directors' Report
6.

Share capital
2017
2016
Number of shares
15,001,000
15,001,000
10,000,000
10,000,000

Authorised
Ordinary shares
10% Non-voting 13.3% participating preference shares

Issued
Ordinary shares
10% Non-voting 13.3% participating preference shares
Capitalised shareholder loan

2017
R
13,003,000
2,000,000
14,082,356

2016
R
13,003,000
2,000,000
14,082,356

2017
2016
Number of shares
13,003,000
13,003,000
2,000,000
2,000,000
-

29,085,356

29,085,356

15,003,000

15,003,000

There have been no changes to the authorised or issued share capital during the period under review.
7.

Directors

The directors in office at the date of this report are as follows:
Directors
WH Rabie
HF Kruger
HR Mallett
JS Slabber

Nationality
South African
South African
South African
South African

Changes
No change
No change
Resigned 31 May 2016
Appointed 30 September 2016, resigned 13 October 2017

Neill Michael Hobbs is the appointed business rescue practitioner of Wilenri Appliance Services (Pty) Ltd and consequently
holds the powers and duties set out in Chapter 6 of the Companies Act No.71 of 2008. At the date of this report, Wilenri
Appliance Services (Pty) Ltd remained under business rescue.
8.

Holding company

The group's holding company is Anuva Investments (Pty) Ltd which holds 69% (2016 69%) of the group's equity. Anuva
Investments (Pty) Ltd was incorporated on 1 October 2014.
9.

Ultimate holding company

The group's ultimate holding company is Hobbs Sinclair Business Solutions (Pty) Ltd which was incorporated on 21 December
2011.
10. Events after the reporting period
The directors are not aware of any material event which occurred after the reporting date and up to the date of this report.
11. Review
The financial statements are subject to an independent review and have been reviewed by Middel & Partners.
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Statement of Financial Position as at 28 February 2017
Group
28 February
2017
R

Notes

Company

29 February
2016
R

28 February
2017
R

29 February
2016
R

Assets
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investments in subsidiaries
Deferred tax

840,507
28,866,725

1,231,120
28,658,210

355,010
100
28,912,985

466,211
100
28,707,401

29,707,232

29,889,330

29,268,095

29,173,712

5,220,948
5,540,556
519,750
463,825

271,439
2,833,747
159,630

5,220,948
5,540,556
519,750
463,825

271,439
1,271
2,833,747
159,630

11,745,079

3,264,816

11,745,079

3,266,087

41,452,311

33,154,146

41,013,174

32,439,799

29,085,356
80,225
(8,661,818)
(1,722,450)
(200,000)

29,085,356
87,761
(73,906,973)
65,337,617
(100,000)

29,085,356
(8,457,516)
(1,725,380)
(200,000)

29,085,356
(73,906,446)
65,548,930
(100,000)

18,581,313

20,503,761

18,702,460

20,627,840

4,683,238
607,744
60,691

5,510,489
585,166
77,220

4,683,238
607,744
60,691

5,510,489
585,166
77,220

5,351,673

6,172,875

5,351,673

6,172,875

3,783,033
13,167,559
190,000
240,649
138,084

3,840,751
1,998,538
525,101
113,120

2,921,929
13,468,379
190,000
240,649
138,084

3,002,325
1,998,538
525,101
113,120

17,519,325

6,477,510

16,959,041

5,639,084

Total Liabilities

22,870,998

12,650,385

22,310,714

11,811,959

Total Equity and Liabilities

41,452,311

33,154,146

41,013,174

32,439,799

Current Assets
Inventories
Loans to group companies
Trade and other receivables
Other financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents

2
3
4

5
6
7
8
9

Total Assets
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Share capital
Revaluation reserve
Accumulated loss
Net profit / (loss) for the period
Preference dividends

10

Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Loans from group companies
Provisions
Post commencement business rescue funding

Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables
Loans from group companies
Provisions
Pre commencement business rescue claims
Post commencement business rescue funding

6
12
13

14
6
12
15
13
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
Group
12 months
ended
28 February
2017
R

Notes

Company

11 months
ended
29 February
2016
R

12 months
ended
28 February
2017
R

11 months
ended
29 February
2016
R

Revenue
Cost of sales

16
17

29,488,235
(11,128,843)

22,409,052
(5,503,144)

29,488,235
(11,128,843)

17,943,560
(5,503,144)

Gross profit
Other income
Operating expenses

18

18,359,392
221,399
(19,736,618)

16,905,908
39,143,748
(19,137,353)

18,359,392
209,728
(19,724,947)

12,440,416
39,143,748
(14,475,810)

Operating (loss) profit
Investment revenue
Finance costs

20
22

(1,155,827)
(775,137)

36,912,303
802
(267,624)

(1,155,827)
(775,137)

37,108,354
802
(267,624)

(Loss) profit before taxation
Taxation

23

(1,930,964)
208,515

36,645,481
28,692,136

(1,930,964)
205,584

36,841,532
28,707,401

(1,722,449)

65,337,617

(1,725,380)

65,548,933

(Loss) profit for the period
Other comprehensive income:
Revaluation surplus
Taxation related to components of other
comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income for the period net of
taxation

24

Total comprehensive (loss) income for the period

-

121,890
(34,129)

-

-

-

87,761

-

-

(1,722,449)
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65,425,378

(1,725,380)

65,548,933
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Statement of Changes in Equity
Share capital
R
Group
Balance at 01 March 2015

Revaluation
reserve
R

Accumulated
loss
R

4,002,000

-

Profit for the period
Other comprehensive income

-

Total comprehensive income for the period

Total equity
R

(73,906,968)

(69,904,968)

87,238

65,337,617
-

65,337,617
87,238

-

87,238

65,337,617

65,424,855

Issue of shares
Capitalisation of shareholder loan
Transfer between reserves - realisation of revaluation
reserve on disposal of revalued asset
Preference dividends

11,001,000
14,082,356
-

523

-

11,001,000
14,082,356
523

-

-

(100,000)

Total changes

25,083,356

523

(100,000)

24,983,879

Balance at 01 March 2016

29,085,356

87,761

(8,669,351)

20,503,766

Loss for the period
Total comprehensive loss for the period

-

-

(1,722,449)
(1,722,449)

(1,722,449)
(1,722,449)

Transfer between reserves - realisation of revaluation
reserve on disposal of revalued asset
Preference dividends

-

(7,536)

-

Total changes

-

Balance at 28 February 2017

29,085,356

Notes

10

Company
Balance at 01 March 2015

(7,536)
80,225
24

7,536
(200,000)
(192,464)
(10,584,264)

(100,000)

(200,000)
(200,000)
18,581,317

24

4,002,000

-

(73,906,445)

(69,904,445)

-

-

65,548,933
-

65,548,933
-

65,548,933

65,548,933

Profit for the period
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the period

-

-

Issue of shares
Capitalisation of shareholder loan
Preference dividends

11,001,000
14,082,356
-

-

(100,000)

11,001,000
14,082,356
(100,000)

Total changes

25,083,356

-

(100,000)

24,983,356

Balance at 01 March 2016

29,085,356

-

(8,457,512)

20,627,844

Loss for the period
Total comprehensive loss for the period

-

-

(1,725,380)
(1,725,380)

(1,725,380)
(1,725,380)

Preference dividends

-

-

(200,000)

(200,000)

Total changes

-

-

(200,000)

(200,000)

29,085,356

-

(10,382,892)

Balance at 28 February 2017
Notes

10

9

24

24

18,702,464

Wilenri Appliance Services (Pty) Ltd Group
Formerly Wilenri Appliance Services (Pty) Ltd t/a Earlybird
(Registration number 2000/026426/07)
Trading as Mastercare
Consolidated Annual Financial Statements for the period ended 28 February 2017

Statement of Cash Flows
Group
12 months
ended
28 February
2017
R

Notes

Company

11 months
ended
29 February
2016
R

12 months
ended
28 February
2017
R

11 months
ended
29 February
2016
R

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash receipts from customers
Cash paid to suppliers and employees
Cash used in operations
Interest income
Finance costs

25

Net cash from operating activities

25,718,846
(34,109,215)

20,738,812
(21,995,626)

25,718,846
(34,271,217)

20,738,812
(21,995,626)

(8,390,369)
(44,692)

(1,256,814)
802
(25,188)

(8,552,371)
(44,692)

(1,256,814)
802
(25,188)

(8,435,061)

(1,281,200)

(8,597,063)

(1,281,200)

(16,394)
117,414
9,453,943
(519,750)

(32,398)
1,490,000
(380,000)
-

(16,394)
9,733,359
(519,750)

(43,457)
1,490,000
(380,000)
-

9,035,213

1,066,543

9,197,215

1,066,543

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Sale of property, plant and equipment
Loans advanced from group companies
Repayment of loans from group companies
Loans advanced to other companies

2
2

Net cash from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds on share issue
Movement in post commencement business rescue
finance
Movement in pre commencement business rescue
liabilities

10

Net cash from financing activities
Total cash movement for the period
Cash at the beginning of the period
Total cash at end of the period

9

10

(11,507)

11,000,000
(914,956)

(11,507)

11,000,000
(914,956)

(284,450)

(9,832,484)

(284,450)

(9,832,484)

(295,957)

252,560

(295,957)

252,560

304,195
159,630

37,903
121,727

304,195
159,630

37,903
121,727

463,825

159,630

463,825

159,630
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Accounting Policies
1.

Presentation of consolidated annual financial statements

The consolidated annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting
Standard for Small and Medium-sized Entities, and the Companies Act 71 of 2008. The consolidated annual financial
statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, and incorporate the principal accounting policies set out below.
They are presented in South African Rands.
These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period.
1.1 Consolidation
Basis of consolidation
The consolidated annual financial statements incorporate the annual financial statements of the company and all of its
subsidiaries.
Control exists when the company has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.
The results of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated annual financial statements from the effective date of acquisition to
the effective date of disposal. All intragroup transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated.
Investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses, in the company's separate
consolidated annual financial statements.
1.2 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty
Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
Management did not make critical judgements in the application of accounting policies, apart from those involving estimations,
which would significantly affect the consolidated annual financial statements.
Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Provisions
Provisions are inherently based on assumptions and estimates using the best information available. Additional disclosure of
these estimates of provisions are included in note 12.
Taxation
Judgement is required in determining the provision for income, value-added and payroll taxes due to the complexity of
legislation. There are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. The company recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income, value-added, payroll and deferred tax provisions in the period in
which such determination is made.
Also, the company recognises the net future tax benefit related to deferred income tax assets to the extent that it is probable
that the deductible temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future. Assessing the recoverability of deferred
income tax assets requires the company to make significant estimates related to expectations of future taxable income.
Estimates of future taxable income are based on forecast cash flows from operations and the application of existing tax laws in
each jurisdiction. To the extent that future cash flows and taxable income differ significantly from estimates, the ability of the
company to realise the net deferred tax assets recorded at the end of the reporting period could be impacted.
1.3 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are tangible items that are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
rental to others or for administrative purposes; and are expected to be used during more than one period.
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Accounting Policies
1.3 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Property, plant and equipment is initially recognised at cost. Cost include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item
of property, plant and equipment.
Management has adopted the revaluation model to measure property, plant and equipment after initial recognition. Fair value is
the price between two competitors in the market at the revaluation date. The fair value of property, plant and equipment is
evaluated and determined by management during the year.
The revaluation reserve is recognised from the revaluation of property, plant and equipment to fair value and is realised on
disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment.
Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost or fair value less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.
Cost include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred
subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an item of
property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method to write down the cost, less estimated residual value over the useful life
of the property, plant and equipment as follows:
Item

Depreciation method

Average useful life

Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles
IT equipment

Straight line
Straight line
Straight line

6 years
5 years
3 years

If the major components of an item of property, plant and equipment have significantly different patterns of consumption of
economic benefits, the cost of the asset is allocated to its major components and each such component is depreciated
separately over its useful life.
1.4 Financial instruments
Initial measurement
Financial instruments are initially measured at the transaction price (including transaction costs except in the initial
measurement of financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value through profit or loss) unless the arrangement
constitutes, in effect, a financing transaction in which case it is measured at the present value of the future payments
discounted at a market rate of interest for a similar debt instrument.
Financial instruments at amortised cost
These include loans, trade receivables and trade payables. Those debt instruments which meet the criteria in section 11.8(b) of
the standard, are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Debt instruments which are
classified as current assets or current liabilities are measured at the undiscounted amount of the cash expected to be received
or paid, unless the arrangement effectively constitutes a financing transaction.
At each reporting date, the carrying amounts of assets held in this category are reviewed to determine whether there is any
objective evidence of impairment. If there is objective evidence, the recoverable amount is estimated and compared with the
carrying amount. If the estimated recoverable amount is lower, the carrying amount is reduced to its estimated recoverable
amount, and an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Accounting Policies
1.5 Tax
Current tax assets and liabilities
Current tax for current and prior periods is, to the extent unpaid, recognised as a liability. If the amount already paid in respect
of current and prior periods exceeds the amount due for those periods, the excess is recognised as an asset.
The tax liability reflects the effect of the possible outcomes of a review by the tax authorities.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities
A deferred tax liability is recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
A deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible temporary differences and for the carry forward of unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at an amount that includes the effect of the possible outcomes of a review by
the tax authorities using tax rates that, on the basis of enacted or substantively enacted tax law at the end of the reporting
period, are expected to apply when the deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.
Deferred tax asset balances are reviewed at every reporting date. When necessary, a valuation allowance is recognised
against the deferred tax assets so that the net amount equals the highest amount that is more likely than not to be realised on
the basis of current or future taxable profit.
Tax expenses
Tax expense is recognised in the same component of total comprehensive income or equity as the transaction or other event
that resulted in the tax expense.
1.6 Leases
A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the
lessee. All other leases are operating leases.
Operating leases – lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless:
another systematic basis is representative of the time pattern of the benefit from the leased asset, even if the
payments are not on that basis, or
the payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation (based on published indexes or
statistics) to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases.
Any contingent rents are expensed in the period they are incurred.
1.7 Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and estimated selling price less costs to complete and sell, on the first-in, first-out
(FIFO) basis.
1.8 Impairment of assets
The group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that property, plant and equipment or intangible
assets or goodwill may be impaired.
If there is any such indication, the recoverable amount of any affected asset (or group of related assets) is estimated and
compared with its carrying amount. If the estimated recoverable amount is lower, the carrying amount is reduced to its
estimated recoverable amount, and an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Accounting Policies
1.8 Impairment of assets (continued)
If an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or group of related assets) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but not in excess of the amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or group of assets) in prior periods. A reversal of impairment is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
1.9 Share capital and equity
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities.
If the group reacquires its own equity instruments, those instruments are deducted from equity. No gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the group’s own equity instruments. Consideration paid or received
shall be recognised directly in equity.
1.10 Provisions and contingencies
Provisions are recognised when the group has an obligation at the reporting date as a result of a past event; it is probable that
the group will be required to transfer economic benefits in settlement; and the amount of the obligation can be estimated
reliably.
1.11 Revenue
Revenue is recognised to the extent that the group has transferred the significant risks and rewards of ownership of goods to
the buyer, or has rendered services under an agreement provided the amount of revenue can be measured reliably and it is
probable that economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the group. Revenue is measured at the fair value of
the consideration received or receivable, excluding sales taxes and discounts.
Interest is recognised, in profit or loss, using the effective interest rate method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Annual Financial Statements
Group
12 months
ended
28 February
2017
R
2.

Company

11 months
ended
29 February
2016
R

12 months
ended
28 February
2017
R

11 months
ended
29 February
2016
R

Property, plant and equipment

Group

2017
Fair value

Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles
IT equipment
Total

2016

Accumulated Carrying value
depreciation

Fair value

Accumulated Carrying value
depreciation

450,589
808,423
113,693

(141,950)
(322,926)
(67,322)

308,639
485,497
46,371

450,589
956,136
117,198

(66,851)
(191,227)
(34,725)

383,738
764,909
82,473

1,372,705

(532,198)

840,507

1,523,923

(292,803)

1,231,120

Company

2017
Fair value

2016

Accumulated Carrying value
depreciation

Fair value

Accumulated Carrying value
depreciation

Furniture and fixtures
IT equipment

450,589
113,693

(141,950)
(67,322)

308,639
46,371

450,589
117,198

(66,851)
(34,725)

383,738
82,473

Total

564,282

(209,272)

355,010

567,787

(101,576)

466,211

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - Group - 2017
Opening
balance
383,738
764,909
82,473

Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles
IT equipment

Additions

1,231,120

Disposals

Depreciation

Total

16,394

(105,742)
(12,623)

(75,099)
(173,670)
(39,873)

308,639
485,497
46,371

16,394

(118,365)

(288,642)

840,507

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - Group - 2016

Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles
IT equipment

Opening
balance
1,500,000
848,796
660,414
3,009,210

Additions /
Revaluation
Depreciation
Impairment
(Disposals)
loss
26,359
(66,851)
(1,075,770)
(11,059)
121,164
(193,992)
17,098
(34,725)
(560,314)
32,398

121,164

(295,568)

(1,636,084)

Total
383,738
764,909
82,473
1,231,120

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - Company - 2017

Furniture and fixtures
IT equipment

Opening
balance
383,738
82,473
466,211

15

Additions

Disposals

Depreciation

Total

16,394

(12,623)

(75,099)
(39,873)

308,639
46,371

16,394

(12,623)

(114,972)

355,010
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Notes to the Consolidated Annual Financial Statements
Group
12 months
ended
28 February
2017
R
2.

Company

11 months
ended
29 February
2016
R

12 months
ended
28 February
2017
R

11 months
ended
29 February
2016
R

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - Company - 2016

Furniture and fixtures
IT equipment

Opening
balance
1,500,000
660,414
2,160,414

Additions

Depreciation

26,359
17,098
43,457

Impairment
loss
(66,851)
(1,075,770)
(34,725)
(560,314)

(101,576)

(1,636,084)

Total
383,738
82,473
466,211

Changes in fair value 2016
On 1 March 2015 management revalued motor vehicles to fair value. The fair values were based on insurance and resale
values of the assets. The carrying amounts of the motor vehicles determined under the cost price model are as follows:
Cost price model reconciliation of property, plant and
equipment - 2017
Motor vehicles

Opening
Depreciation
balance
667,397
(151,168)

Disposals
(97,647)

Carrying value
418,582

Impairment 2016
On 1 April 2015 management estimated the recoverable amounts of furniture and fittings and IT equipment to test for
impairment. The recoverable amounts were estimated and determined at fair value less cost to sale. There was no reason to
believe that the assets' value in use materially exceeded its fair value less costs to sell. The impairment charges were recorded
in the 2016 financial year.
3.

Investments in subsidiaries
% holding % holding
Carrying
Carrying
2017
2016
amount 2017 amount 2016
100.00 % 100.00 %
100
100

Mastercare Appliances (Pty) Ltd

All the entities are incorporated in South Africa and share the year end of the group.
The carrying amounts of subsidiaries are shown gross of impairment losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Annual Financial Statements
Group
12 months
ended
28 February
2017
R
4.

Company

11 months
ended
29 February
2016
R

12 months
ended
28 February
2017
R

11 months
ended
29 February
2016
R

Deferred tax

Deferred tax asset
Property plant and equipment
Provision for professional fees
Provision for leave pay

455,578
53,200
170,168

(61,433)
474,377
163,846

505,513
53,200
170,168

474,377
163,846

Deferred tax balance from temporary differences other
than unused tax losses
Tax losses available for set off against future taxable
income

678,946

576,790

728,881

638,223

28,187,779

28,081,420

28,184,104

28,069,178

28,866,725

28,658,210

28,912,985

28,707,401

Total deferred tax asset

The deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liability relate to income tax in the same jurisdiction, and the law allows net
settlement. Therefore, they have been offset in the statement of financial position as follows:
Reconciliation of deferred tax asset
At beginning of year
Increases (decrease) in tax loss available for set off
against future taxable income - net of valuation
allowance
Movement in temporary difference of property, plant
and equipment
Movement in temporary difference of provision for leave
pay
Movement in temporary difference due to revaluation of
property, plant and equipment
Movement in temporary difference due to realisation of
deferred tax on disposal of revalued asset
Movement in temporary differences of provision for
professional fees

5.

28,081,420

28,707,401
114,926

28,069,178

39,703

447,073

31,136

474,377

6,322

163,846

6,322

163,846

-

(33,926)

-

-

2,931

(203)

-

-

53,200

-

53,200

-

28,866,725

28,658,210

28,912,985

28,707,401

4,150,000
1,070,948

271,439

4,150,000
1,070,948

271,439

5,220,948

271,439

5,220,948

271,439

-

-

Inventories

Trading stock
Inventory spares

6.

28,658,210
106,359

Loans to (from) group companies

Subsidiaries
Mastercare Appliances (Pty) Ltd
The loan is interest free, unsecured and has no terms
of repayment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Annual Financial Statements
Group
12 months
ended
28 February
2017
R
6.

Company

11 months
ended
29 February
2016
R

12 months
ended
28 February
2017
R

11 months
ended
29 February
2016
R

Loans to (from) group companies (continued)

Holding company
Anuva Investments (Pty) Ltd
The amount represents outstanding fees so ceeded by
cessionary agreement concluded on 26 February 2016.
The loan is unsecured, bears interest at 1% per month,
calculated daily and capitalised monthly, and is
repayable in installments of R100 000, commencing 1
September 2016.

(6,483,238)

Anuva Investments (Pty) Ltd
Interest accrues daily and capitalised monthly at prime
plus 2% per month, from 22 December 2016. The loan
is repayable in full within 30 days notice or 28 February
2018, whichever occurs first.

(2,648,446)

Anuva Investments (Pty) Ltd
Interest accrues daily and is capitalised monthly at 1%
per month, from 27 November 2015. The loan is
repayable in full within 180 days notice. Interest is also
payable monthly.

(1,162,113)

Anuva Investments (Pty) Ltd
Interest accrues and capitalised monthly at prime plus
2% per month, from 7 September 2016. The loan is
repayable in full within 180 days notice. Interest is also
payable monthly

(1,061,085)

-

(1,061,085)

-

Anuva Investments (Pty) Ltd
Interest accrues and is capitalised daily at 1% per
month from 1 March 2017. The loan is repayable on 23
May 2017.

(525,000)

-

(525,000)

-

Anuva Investments (Pty) Ltd
Interest accrues daily and is capitalised monthly at 2%
per month, from 19 November 2015. The loan is
repayable in full within 60 days notice. Interest is also
payable monthly

(338,900)

Anuva Investments (Pty) Ltd
Interest accrues daily and is capitalised monthly at
prime plus 2% per month from 27 May 2016. The loan
is repayable in full within 180 days notice or 1 October
2019, whichever occurs first.

(329,581)

Anuva Investments (Pty) Ltd
The loan is interest free, unsecured and has no terms
of repayment.

(5,302,434)

(100,000)

(5,302,434)

(100,000)

(8,719,113)

(1,398,538)

(8,719,113)

(1,398,538)

(17,850,797)

(7,509,027)

(17,850,797)

(7,509,027)

18

(6,110,489)

-

(1,031,317)

(267,221)

-

(6,483,238)

(2,648,446)

(1,162,113)

(338,900)

(329,581)

(6,110,489)

-

(1,031,317)

(267,221)

-

Wilenri Appliance Services (Pty) Ltd Group
Formerly Wilenri Appliance Services (Pty) Ltd t/a Earlybird
(Registration number 2000/026426/07)
Trading as Mastercare
Consolidated Annual Financial Statements for the period ended 28 February 2017

Notes to the Consolidated Annual Financial Statements
Group
12 months
ended
28 February
2017
R
6.

12 months
ended
28 February
2017
R

11 months
ended
29 February
2016
R

Loans to (from) group companies (continued)

Current assets
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

7.

Company

11 months
ended
29 February
2016
R

(4,683,238)
(13,167,559)

(5,510,489)
(1,998,538)

(4,683,238)
(13,468,379)

1,271
(5,510,489)
(1,998,538)

(17,850,797)

(7,509,027)

(18,151,617)

(7,507,756)

4,751,714
20,146
299,626
462,311
6,759

1,184,379
1,500
240,926
1,283,540
123,402
-

4,751,714
20,146
299,626
462,311
6,759

1,184,379
1,500
240,926
1,283,540
123,402
-

5,540,556

2,833,747

5,540,556

2,833,747

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables
Staff loans
Prepayments (if immaterial)
Deposits
VAT
Accrued income
Insurance income receivable

Value-Added Tax(VAT) receivable has been based on calculations and submissions made by management to SARS. At the
reporting date these submissions were not assessed.
8.

Other financial assets

At amortised cost
Cape Mohair (Pty) Ltd
The loans bears interest at 1% per month which
accrues and is capitalised daily from 1 March 2017.
The loan is repayable on 23 May 2017.

Current assets
At amortised cost
9.

519,750

-

519,750

-

519,750

-

519,750

-

8,542
455,283

2,722
156,908

8,542
455,283

2,722
156,908

463,825

159,630

463,825

159,630

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:
Cash on hand
Bank balances
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Group
12 months
ended
28 February
2017
R

Company

11 months
ended
29 February
2016
R

12 months
ended
28 February
2017
R

11 months
ended
29 February
2016
R

10. Share capital
Authorised number of shares
Ordinary shares
10% Non-voting 13.3% participating preference shares

Reconciliation of number of shares issued
Opening balance
Issue of shares – ordinary shares
Issue of shares – preference shares

Issued
Ordinary shares
10% Non-voting 13.3% participating preference shares
Capitalised shareholder loan

15,001,000
10,000,000

15,001,000
10,000,000

15,001,000
10,000,000

15,001,000
10,000,000

25,001,000

25,001,000

25,001,000

25,001,000

15,003,000
-

4,002,000
9,001,000
2,000,000

15,003,000
-

4,002,000
9,001,000
2,000,000

15,003,000

15,003,000

15,003,000

15,003,000

13,002,000
2,000,000
14,083,356

13,003,000
2,000,000
14,082,356

13,002,000
2,000,000
14,083,356

13,003,000
2,000,000
14,082,356

29,085,356

29,085,356

29,085,356

29,085,356

Share terms
Each ordinary Share in the issued capital of the Company ranks pari passu with all other ordinary shares in respect of all rights,
and entitles the holder to:
exercise one vote per Share on any matter to be decided by a vote of the ordinary shareholders;
participate, pro rata in accordance with the number of Shares, in any distribution (as defined in part (a) of the
definitions of Distribution in the Act, but excluding any payment in lieu of a capitalisation share and any
consideration payable by the Company for the acquisition of any of its own shares or for any shares of another
company within the same group as contemplated in paragraphs (a)(ii) and (a)(iii) of the definitions of Distribution in
the Act) of profit to the ordinary and participating shareholder; and
participate, pro rata in accordance with the number of ordinary participating preference shares, in the distribution of
the residual value of the Company upon its dissolution.
Preference dividend accrual
Preference dividends of R 200,000 (2016: R 100,000) were declared before the consolidated annual financial statements were
authorised for issue but have been recognised as a distribution to preference shareholder during the period.

11. Dividend payable
Preference dividends accrued for in respect of the 2 000 000 10% non-voting 13.3% participating preference shares. The
amounts are accrued in favour of the preference shareholder's loan account, Anuva Investments (Pty) Ltd, refer to note 6.
10% Preference dividends

(200,000)
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(200,000)

(100,000)
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Notes to the Consolidated Annual Financial Statements
Group
12 months
ended
28 February
2017
R

Company

11 months
ended
29 February
2016
R

12 months
ended
28 February
2017
R

11 months
ended
29 February
2016
R

12. Provisions
Reconciliation of provisions - Group - 2017
Opening
balance
585,166
-

Provisions for employee benefits
Provision for compilation and independent review fees

585,166

Additions

Reversed
during the year
607,744
(585,166)
190,000
797,744

(585,166)

Total
607,744
190,000
797,744

Reconciliation of provisions - Company - 2017
Opening
balance
585,166
-

Provisions for employee benefits
Provision for compilation and independent review fees

Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

Additions

Reversed
during the year
607,744
(585,166)
190,000
-

Total
607,744
190,000

585,166

797,744

(585,166)

797,744

607,744
190,000

585,166
-

607,744
190,000

585,166
-

797,744

585,166

797,744

585,166

The employee leave pay provision was revised during the current reporting period and represents the net obligations for leave
pay outstanding at year end.
The provisions include amounts outstanding to Hobbs Sinclair and Middel & Partners for accounting work completed but not yet
invoiced in respect of the 2017 Annual Financial Statements compilation and independent review.
13. Post commencement business rescue funding
Nedi Investments (Pty) Ltd
The loan incurs interest at prime and is repaid in equal
monthly instalments.

198,775

190,340

198,775

190,340

Non-current portion
Current portion

60,691
138,084

77,220
113,120

60,691
138,084

77,220
113,120

198,775

190,340

198,775

190,340

1,719,775
861,105
1,177,071
25,082

1,599,482
838,425
1,121,789
281,055

1,719,776
1,177,071
25,082

1,599,481
1,121,789
281,055

3,783,033

3,840,751

2,921,929

3,002,325

14. Trade and other payables
Trade payables
VAT
Employees tax
Accrued expenses

Employee and Value-Added Tax(VAT) payable has been based on calculations and submissions made by management to
SARS. At the reporting date these submissions were not assessed and certian VAT returns remain outstanding.
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Group
12 months
ended
28 February
2017
R

Company

11 months
ended
29 February
2016
R

12 months
ended
28 February
2017
R

11 months
ended
29 February
2016
R

15. Pre commencement business rescue claims
Pre commencement business rescue claims

240,649

525,101

240,649

525,101

Creditors' claims remaining in accordance with the offer to creditors, approved on 13 August 2015. The company will continue
to settle these claims in the ordinary course of business for the foreseeable future.
16. Revenue
Sale of goods
Rendering of services

4,206,177
25,282,058

22,409,052

4,206,177
25,282,058

17,943,560

29,488,235

22,409,052

29,488,235

17,943,560

3,129,244

-

3,129,244

-

17. Cost of sales
Sale of goods
Cost of goods sold
Rendering of services
Cost of services

7,999,599

5,503,144

7,999,599

5,503,144

11,128,843

5,503,144

11,128,843

5,503,144

11,671
17,728
192,000

43,371
4,414,966
34,237,411
448,000

17,728
192,000

43,371
4,414,966
34,237,411
448,000

221,399

39,143,748

209,728

39,143,748

10,447,346
22,578
275,555

9,157,293
585,166
-

10,447,346
22,578
275,555

9,157,293
585,166
-

10,745,479

9,742,459

10,745,479

9,742,459

-

802

-

802

18. Other income
Gains on disposal of assets
Recoveries
Gain on settlement of professional fees
Gain on compromise of creditors' claims
Recoveries from Ellerines

19. Employee cost
Employee costs
Basic
Leave pay provision charge
Termination benefits

Refer to note 28 for director's remmuneration.
20. Investment revenue
Interest revenue
Bank
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Group
12 months
ended
28 February
2017
R

Company

11 months
ended
29 February
2016
R

12 months
ended
28 February
2017
R

11 months
ended
29 February
2016
R

21. Independent reviewer & compiler's remuneration
Fees

190,000

-

190,000

-

710,503
19,942
29,306
15,386
-

64,065
13,228
25,333
17,144
147,854

710,503
19,942
29,306
15,386
-

64,065
13,228
25,333
17,144
147,854

775,137

267,624

775,137

267,624

22. Finance costs
Group companies
Shareholders
Trade and other payables
Bank
Current borrowings

23. Taxation
Major components of the tax income
Deferred
Originating and reversing temporary differences
Arising from previously unrecognised tax loss / tax
credit / temporary difference
Arising from differences in property, plant and
equipment and realisation of deferred tax on disposal of
revalued asset

(90,658)
(106,359)
(11,498)

(208,515)

(638,223)
(28,081,420)
27,507

(28,692,136)

(90,658)
(114,926)
-

(205,584)

(638,223)
(28,069,178)
-

(28,707,401)

Reconciliation of the tax expense
Reconciliation between accounting profit and tax expense.
Accounting (loss) profit
Tax at the applicable tax rate of 28% (2016: 28%)
Tax effect of adjustments on taxable income
Permanent difference
Temporary difference
Tax loss (ultilised) / increased

(1,930,964)

36,645,481

(1,930,964)

36,841,532

(540,670)

10,260,735

(540,670)

10,315,629

166,916
267,395
106,359

(7,319,821)
36,041
(2,976,955)

170,184
255,560
114,926

(7,354,873)
28,441
(2,989,197)

-
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Notes to the Consolidated Annual Financial Statements
Group
12 months
ended
28 February
2017
R

Company

11 months
ended
29 February
2016
R

12 months
ended
28 February
2017
R

11 months
ended
29 February
2016
R

Gross

Tax

Net

24. Other comprehensive income
Components of other comprehensive income - Group - 2017

Revaluation reserve
Gains on revaluation of motor vehicles
Realisation on disposal of revalued asset

121,890
(10,467)

(34,129)
2,931

87,761
(7,536)

111,423

(31,198)

80,225

Components of other comprehensive income - Group - 2016
Gross
Revaluation reserve
Gains on revaluation of motor vehicles
Realisation on disposal of revalued asset

Tax

Net

121,164
726

(33,926)
(203)

87,238
523

121,890

(34,129)

87,761

36,645,481

(1,930,964)

36,841,532

25. Cash used in operations
(Loss) profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation
Loss on sale of assets
Interest received
Finance costs
Impairment loss
Movements in provisions
Reversal of excess provisions
Gain on compromise of creditors' claims
Accounting fees
Bad debts
Business rescue fees
Reversal of impairment of receivables
Changes in working capital:
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Trade and other payables

(1,930,964)
288,642
951
775,137
212,578
508,046

24

295,568
2,059
(802)
267,624
1,636,084
344,299
(4,414,966)
(34,237,411)
985,287
76,999
17,079
-

114,972
12,622
775,137
212,578
508,046

101,576
(802)
267,624
1,636,084
344,299
(4,414,966)
(34,237,411)
985,287
76,999
17,079
-

(4,949,509)
(3,214,855)
(80,395)

(155,224)
(1,677,319)
(1,041,572)

(4,949,509)
(3,214,855)
(80,398)

(155,224)
(1,677,319)
(1,041,572)

(8,390,369)

(1,256,814)

(8,552,371)

(1,256,814)
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Notes to the Consolidated Annual Financial Statements
Group
12 months
ended
28 February
2017
R

Company

11 months
ended
29 February
2016
R

12 months
ended
28 February
2017
R

11 months
ended
29 February
2016
R

26. Contingencies
There is an ongoing dispute with SARS regarding the company's VAT and Payroll Tax Statement of Accounts from 7 May 2012
up to 29 February 2016. SARS is in the processes of setting off the VAT receivable against the Payroll Taxes payable in
respect of these periods. However, there remains uncertainty surrounding the amount of penalties and interest that will be
payable in respect of long outstanding Payroll Taxes. SARS has communicated that there is no reasonable estimate of the
amount of penalties and interest that will be due after the offset, since SARS' system will calculate the balance automatically.
Due to this uncertainty management has impaired the net receivable with R508 046, to agree to the capital amounts
outstanding to and receivable from SARS, as this is a deemed as a more prudent estimate of the situation at year end.
However, it is estimated that a further R337 532 penalties and interest will be payable in respect of this settlement. The
company's management believes that the matter will be resolved within the next two years and will remain in business rescue
until the matter has been resolved.
27. Related parties
`

Relationships
Ultimate holding company
Holding company
Subsidiaries
Shareholders with significant influence

Hobbs Sinclair Business Solutions (Pty) Ltd
Anuva Investments (Pty) Ltd
Refer to note 3
Anuva Investments (Pty) Ltd
Nedi Investments (Pty) Ltd
WH Rabie
HF Kruger
S Bekker
NM Hobbs (Senior Business Rescue Practitioner)
J Slabber, resigned 13 October 2017

Key management

Related party balances and transactions with entities with control, joint control or significant influence over the
company
Related party balances
Loans - Owing (to) by related parties
Anuva Investments (Pty) Ltd
Nedi Investments (Pty) Ltd

(17,850,797)
(198,775)

(7,509,027)
(190,340)

Please refer to note 6 & 13 for details relating to the terms and conditions of the above amounts.
Related party transactions
Interest paid to (received from) related parties
Anuva Investments (Pty) Ltd
Nedi Investments (Pty) Ltd

710,503
19,942

64,065
13,228

2,341,564

1,923,092

Compensation paid to key management
Short-term employee benefits

2,341,564
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Group
12 months
ended
28 February
2017
R

11 months
ended
29 February
2016
R

Company
12 months
ended
28 February
2017
R

11 months
ended
29 February
2016
R

28. Directors' remuneration
Executive
2017

WH Rabie
HF Kruger
JS Slabber
HR Mallett

Emoluments
921,875
705,025
120,000
397,202

Total
921,875
705,025
120,000
397,202

2,144,102

2,144,102

Emoluments
785,846
626,421
447,683
63,142

Total
785,846
626,421
447,683
63,142

1,923,092

1,923,092

2016

WH Rabie
HF Kruger
HR Mallett
R Horn

29. Comparative figures
The prior reporting period is 11 months in duration, therefore comparative amounts are not comparable to the current year
balances.
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Detailed Income Statement
Group
12 months
ended
28 February
2017
R

Notes
Revenue
Sale of goods
Rendering of services
16
Cost of sales
Opening stock
Purchases
Closing stock
17
Gross profit
Other income
Gain on compromise of creditors' claims
Gain on settlement of professional fees
Gains on disposal of assets
Interest received
Recoveries
Recoveries from Ellerines

20

Expenses (Refer to page 28)

11 months
ended
29 February
2016
R

12 months
ended
28 February
2017
R

11 months
ended
29 February
2016
R

4,206,177
25,282,058

22,409,052

4,206,177
25,282,058

17,943,560

29,488,235

22,409,052

29,488,235

17,943,560

(271,439)
(16,078,352)
5,220,948

(5,774,583)
271,439

(271,439)
(16,078,352)
5,220,948

(5,774,583)
271,439

(11,128,843)

(5,503,144)

(11,128,843)

(5,503,144)

18,359,392

16,905,908

18,359,392

12,440,416

11,671
17,728
192,000

34,237,411
4,414,966
802
43,371
448,000

17,728
192,000

34,237,411
4,414,966
802
43,371
448,000

221,399

39,144,550

209,728

39,144,550

(19,736,618)

(19,137,353)

(19,724,947)

(14,475,810)

Operating (loss) profit
Finance costs

22

(1,155,827)
(775,137)

36,913,105
(267,624)

(1,155,827)
(775,137)

37,109,156
(267,624)

(Loss) profit before taxation
Taxation

23

(1,930,964)
208,515

36,645,481
28,692,136

(1,930,964)
205,584

36,841,532
28,707,401

(1,722,449)

65,337,617

(1,725,380)

65,548,933

(Loss) profit for the period
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Detailed Income Statement
Group
12 months
ended
28 February
2017
R

Notes
Operating expenses
Accounting fees
Advertising
Bad debts
Bank charges
Business rescue costs
Cleaning
Computer expenses
Consulting and professional fees
Depreciation, amortisation and impairments
Donations
Employee costs
Fines and penalties
Independent reviewer & compiler's remuneration
Impairment of receivables
Insurance
Lease rentals on operating lease
Legal expenses
Levies
Motor vehicle expenses
Municipal expenses
Office reallocation fees
Postage
Printing and stationery
Loss on sale of assets
Repairs and maintenance
Security
Staff welfare
Subscriptions
Telephone and fax
Travel - local

21
26

28

Company

11 months
ended
29 February
2016
R

12 months
ended
28 February
2017
R

11 months
ended
29 February
2016
R

(34,338)
(30,515)
(97,601)
(130,776)
(8,783)
(142,902)
(539,874)
(288,642)
(10,745,479)
(84,205)
(190,000)
(508,046)
(155,318)
(2,308,241)
(36,982)
(3,897)
(2,226,955)
(431,140)
(65,119)
(258,683)
(63,036)
(12,622)
(90,581)
(80,020)
(55,597)
(96,132)
(982,104)
(69,030)

(985,287)
(402)
(76,999)
(89,810)
(197,079)
(34,837)
(14,651)
(272,768)
(1,931,652)
(500)
(9,742,459)
(123,127)
(191,887)
(1,984,945)
(172,464)
(1,204,231)
(446,727)
(2,588)
(108,393)
(94,407)
(2,059)
(32,052)
(153,411)
(76,201)
(174,272)
(857,973)
(166,172)

(34,338)
(30,515)
(97,601)
(130,776)
(8,783)
(142,902)
(539,874)
(114,972)
(10,745,479)
(84,205)
(190,000)
(508,046)
(155,318)
(2,308,241)
(36,982)
(3,897)
(2,388,954)
(431,140)
(65,119)
(258,683)
(63,036)
(12,622)
(90,581)
(80,020)
(55,597)
(96,132)
(982,104)
(69,030)

(985,287)
(402)
(76,999)
(89,810)
(197,079)
(34,837)
(14,651)
(272,768)
(1,737,660)
(500)
(9,742,459)
(41,887)
(172,464)
(2,588)
(108,393)
(94,407)
(32,052)
(76,201)
(174,272)
(454,922)
(166,172)

(19,736,618)

(19,137,353)

(19,724,947)

(14,475,810)
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Mastercare Medical Supplies (Pty) Ltd
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Directors' Responsibilities and Approval
The directors are required by the Companies Act 71 of 2008, to maintain adequate accounting records and are responsible for
the content and integrity of the annual financial statements and related financial information included in this report. It is their
responsibility to ensure that the annual financial statements fairly present the state of affairs of the company as at the end of
the financial period and the results of its operations and cash flows for the period then ended, in conformity with the
International Financial Reporting Standard for Small and Medium-sized Entities.
The annual financial statements are prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standard for Small and
Medium-sized Entities and are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable
and prudent judgements and estimates.
The directors acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established by the
company and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the directors to meet
these responsibilities, the directors sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or loss in a cost
effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective
accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored
throughout the company and all employees are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the company’s
business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk management in
the company is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the company. While
operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the company endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure,
controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined procedures and constraints.
The directors are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system of internal
control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the annual financial
statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss.
The directors have reviewed the company’s cash flow forecast for the period to 28 February 2018 and, in the light of this review
and the current financial position, they are satisfied that the company has or has access to adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future.
The independent reviewer is responsible for independently reviewing and reporting on the company's annual financial
statements. The annual financial statements have been examined by the company's independent reviewer and their report is
presented on page 3.
The annual financial statements set out on pages 5 to 16, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were
approved by the directors on 27 October 2017 and were signed on its behalf by:

Neill Michael Hobbs

2

Non-Independent Practitioner's Compilation Report

Compilation engagement
We have compiled the Annual Financial Statements of Mastercare Medical Supplies (Pty) Ltd, as set out on pages 7 - 15,
based on the information you have provided. These Annual Financial Statements comprise the statement of financial
position of Mastercare Medical Supplies (Pty) Ltd as at 28 February 2017, the statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the period then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.
Directors' responsibility for the Annual Financial Statements
The company’s directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these annual financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act, No.71 of 2008,
and for such internal control as the directors determine necessary to enable the preparation of annual financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Non-Independent Practitioner's responsibility
We performed this compilation engagement in accordance with International Standard on Related Services 4410 (Revised),
Compilation Engagements. Neill Michael Hobbs, the signatory of the non-independent practitioner's compilation report, is
not independent, as he is a director of Mastercare Medical Supplies (Pty) Ltd.
We have applied our expertise in accounting and financial reporting to assist you in the preparation and presentation of
these Annual Financial Statements in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standard for Small and Mediumsized Entities.
These Annual Financial Statements and the accuracy and completeness of the information used to compile them are the
directors' responsibility.
Since a compilation engagement is not an assurance engagement, we are not required to verify the accuracy or
completeness of the information you provided to us to compile these Annual Financial Statements. Accordingly, we do not
express an audit opinion or a review conclusion on whether these Annual Financial Statements are prepared in accordance
with the International Financial Reporting Standard for Small and Medium-sized Entities.
Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
The company’s annual financial statements were not prepared within 6 months of the financial year end, as required by
section 30 of the Companies Act, No. 71 of 2008. The annual financial statements were not audited in terms of the
provisions of section 30(2)(b) of the Companies Act, No. 71 of 2008.

NM Hobbs CA (S.A.)
Hobbs Sinclair Incorporated
Chartered Accountants (S.A.)

27 October 2017
8th Floor Letterstedt House
Main Road
Claremont
Cape Town
7708

Mastercare Medical Supplies (Pty) Ltd
(Registration number 2016/362188/07)
Annual Financial Statements for the period ended 28 February 2017

Directors' Report
The directors have pleasure in submitting their report on the annual financial statements of Mastercare Medical Supplies (Pty)
Ltd for the period ended 28 February 2017.
1.

Incorporation

The company was incorporated on 22 August 2016 and obtained its certificate to commence business on the same day.
Therefore, the current financial reporting period is only 7 months.
2.

Nature of business

Mastercare Medical Supplies (Pty) Ltd was incorporated in South Africa with interests in the medical bracing and sport
equipment industry. The company operates in South Africa
3.

Review of financial results and activities

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standard for Small
and Medium-sized Entities and the requirements of the Companies Act 71 of 2008. These are first annual financial statements
for the company and therefore it is the first time that it has adopted these standards.
Full details of the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the company are set out in these annual financial
statements.
4.

Share capital
2017
Number of
shares
1,000

Authorised
Ordinary shares no par value

Issued

2017
R

Ordinary shares no par value

3,000,000

5.

2017
Number of
shares
100

Directors

The directors in office at the date of this report are as follows:
Directors
Neill Michael Hobbs
Johan Slabber
6.

Nationality
South African
South African

Changes
Appointed 22 August 2016
Appointed 30 September 2016, resigned 13 October 2017

Directors' interests in contracts

During the financial year, the company entered into a contract with Hobbs Sinclair Advisory (Pty) Ltd in rendering accounting
services to the company. Neill Michael Hobbs is a director of Hobbs Sinclair Advisory (Pty) Ltd.
7.

Holding company

The company's holding company is Anuva Investments (Pty) Ltd which holds 69% of the company's equity. Anuva Investments
(Pty) Ltd is incorporated on 1 October 2014.
8.

Ultimate holding company

The company's ultimate holding company is Hobbs Sinclair Business Solutions (Pty) Ltd which is incorporated on 21 December
2011.
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Directors' Report
9.

Going concern

The directors believe that the company has adequate financial resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable future
and accordingly the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The directors have satisfied
themselves that the company is in a sound financial position and that it has access to sufficient borrowing facilities to meet its
foreseeable cash requirements. The directors are not aware of any new material changes that may adversely impact the
company. The directors are also not aware of any material non-compliance with statutory or regulatory requirements or of any
pending changes to legislation which may affect the company.
10. Review
The financial statements are subject to an independent review and have been reviewed by Middel & Partners.
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Statement of Financial Position as at 28 February 2017
Notes

28 February
2017
R

Assets
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment

2

8,836

Current Assets
Trade and other receivables
Prepayments
Cash and cash equivalents

3
4
5

1,878,526
103,902
1,041,941
3,024,369

Total Assets

3,033,205

Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Share capital
Accumulated loss

6

3,000,000
(8,982)
2,991,018

Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables
Current tax payable

7
8

25,846
16,341
42,187

Total Equity and Liabilities

3,033,205
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

Notes
Revenue
Rebate income

7 months
ended
28 February
2017
R

1,199,407

Operating expenses
Accounting fees
Bank charges
Computer expenses
Consulting and professional fees
Depreciation, amortisation and impairments
Entertainment
Preliminary expenses
Printing and stationery
Rental costs
Sales representative costs
Staff welfare
Telephone and fax
Transport and freight
Travel - local

(42,404)
(546)
(12,681)
(162,417)
(1,425)
(1,752)
(262,668)
(1,186)
(66,000)
(430,427)
(1,452)
(301)
(142,655)
(66,133)
(1,192,047)

Operating profit
Finance costs

10

7,360
(1)

Profit before taxation
Taxation

11

7,359
(16,341)

Loss for the period
Other comprehensive income

(8,982)
-

Total comprehensive loss for the period

(8,982)
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Statement of Changes in Equity
Share capital
R

Accumulated
loss
R

Total equity
R

Loss for the period
Other comprehensive income

-

(8,982)
-

(8,982)
-

Total comprehensive loss for the period

-

(8,982)

(8,982)

Issue of shares

3,000,000

Total changes

3,000,000

Balance at 28 February 2017

3,000,000

Note

6

9

-

3,000,000

-

3,000,000

(8,982)

2,991,018
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Statement of Cash Flows

Notes

7 months
ended
28 February
2017
R

Cash flows from operating activities
12

Cash used in operations
Finance costs
Net cash from operating activities

(1,947,797)
(1)
(1,947,798)

Cash flows from investing activities
2

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

(10,261)

Cash flows from financing activities
6

Proceeds on share issue
Total cash movement for the period

3,000,000
1,041,941

5

Total cash at end of the period

10

1,041,941
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Accounting Policies
1.

Presentation of annual financial statements

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standard for
Small and Medium-sized Entities, and the Companies Act 71 of 2008. The annual financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis, and incorporate the principal accounting policies set out below. They are presented in South African
Rand.
These accounting policies have been adopted for the first time in the current financial period, refer to note 13 on First-time
adoption of the International Financial Reporting Standard for Small and Medium-sized Entities.
1.1 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty
Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Taxation
Judgement is required in determining the provision for income taxes due to the complexity of legislation. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
The company recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will
be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.
Also, the company recognises the net future tax benefit related to deferred income tax assets to the extent that it is probable
that the deductible temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future. Assessing the recoverability of deferred
income tax assets requires the company to make significant estimates related to expectations of future taxable income.
Estimates of future taxable income are based on forecast cash flows from operations and the application of existing tax laws in
each jurisdiction. To the extent that future cash flows and taxable income differ significantly from estimates, the ability of the
company to realise the net deferred tax assets recorded at the end of the reporting period could be impacted.
1.2 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are tangible items that are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
rental to others or for administrative purposes; and are expected to be used during more than one period.
Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Cost include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred
subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an item of
property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method to write down the cost, less estimated residual value over the useful life
of the property, plant and equipment as follows:
Item

Depreciation method

Average useful life

IT equipment

Straight line

3 years

If the major components of an item of property, plant and equipment have significantly different patterns of consumption of
economic benefits, the cost of the asset is allocated to its major components and each such component is depreciated
separately over its useful life.
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Accounting Policies
1.3 Financial instruments
Financial instruments at amortised cost
These include loans, trade receivables and trade payables. Those debt instruments which meet the criteria in section 11.8(b) of
the standard, are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Debt instruments which are
classified as current assets or current liabilities are measured at the undiscounted amount of the cash expected to be received
or paid, unless the arrangement effectively constitutes a financing transaction.
At each reporting date, the carrying amounts of assets held in this category are reviewed to determine whether there is any
objective evidence of impairment. If there is objective evidence, the recoverable amount is estimated and compared with the
carrying amount. If the estimated recoverable amount is lower, the carrying amount is reduced to its estimated recoverable
amount, and an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
1.4 Tax
Current tax assets and liabilities
Current tax for current and prior periods is, to the extent unpaid, recognised as a liability. If the amount already paid in respect
of current and prior periods exceeds the amount due for those periods, the excess is recognised as an asset.
Current tax liabilities (assets) for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be paid to (recovered
from) the tax authorities, using the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting
date.
The tax liability reflects the effect of the possible outcomes of a review by the tax authorities.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities
A deferred tax liability is recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
A deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible temporary differences and for the carry forward of unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at an amount that includes the effect of the possible outcomes of a review by
the tax authorities using tax rates that, on the basis of enacted or substantively enacted tax law at the end of the reporting
period, are expected to apply when the deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.
Deferred tax asset balances are reviewed at every reporting date. When necessary, a valuation allowance is recognised
against the deferred tax assets so that the net amount equals the highest amount that is more likely than not to be realised on
the basis of current or future taxable profit.
Tax expenses
Tax expense is recognised in the same component of total comprehensive income or equity as the transaction or other event
that resulted in the tax expense.
1.5 Share capital and equity
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities.
1.6 Revenue
Revenue is recognised to the extent that the company has transferred the significant risks and rewards of ownership of goods
to the buyer, or has rendered services under an agreement provided the amount of revenue can be measured reliably and it is
probable that economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the company. Revenue is measured at the fair
value of the consideration received or receivable, excluding sales taxes and discounts.
Interest is recognised, in profit or loss, using the effective interest rate method.
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
7 months
ended
28 February
2017
R
2.

Property, plant and equipment
2017
Cost

IT equipment

10,261

Accumulated Carrying value
depreciation
(1,425)

8,836

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2017
Opening
balance
IT equipment
3.

-

(1,425)

Total
8,836

1,878,526

Prepayments

Prepayments
5.

10,261

Depreciation

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables
4.

Additions

103,902

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:
Bank balances
6.

1,041,941

Share capital

Authorised number of shares
1000 Ordinary shares no par value

1,000

Reconciliation of number of shares issued
Issue of shares – ordinary shares no par value

100

Issued
Ordinary shares no par value
7.

3,000,000

Trade and other payables

Trade payables
VAT

12,596
13,250
25,846

8.

Current tax payable (receivable)

Local income tax payable - current period

16,341
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
7 months
ended
28 February
2017
R
9.

Revenue

Rebate income

1,199,407

10. Finance costs
Bank

1

11. Taxation
Major components of the tax expense
Current
Local income tax - current period

16,341

Reconciliation of the tax expense
Reconciliation between accounting profit and tax expense.
Accounting profit

7,359

Tax at the applicable tax rate of 28% (2016: 28%)

2,061

Tax effect of adjustments on taxable income
Permanent differences (expenses not incurred in the production of income)

14,280
16,341

12. Cash used in operations
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation
Finance costs
Changes in working capital:
Trade and other receivables
Prepayments
Trade and other payables

7,359
1,425
1
(1,878,526)
(103,902)
25,846
(1,947,797)

13. First-time adoption of the International Financial Reporting Standards for Small and Medium-sized Entities.
The company has applied the International Financial Reporting Standard for Small and Medium-sized Entities, for the first time
for the 2017 year end since these are the first annual financial statements of the company. The standard gives certain
mandatory exemptions from this principle, and certain optional exemptions which have been detailed below.
14. Comparative figures
No comparative figures have been presented as these are the first annual financial statements of the company. The current
financial year starts on 22 August 2016 and ends on 28 February 2017.
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
7 months
ended
28 February
2017
R
15. Related parties
`

Relationships
Ultimate holding company
Holding company
Shareholders with significant influence

Hobbs Sincliar Business Solutions (Pty) Ltd
Anuva Investments (Pty) Ltd
Anuva Investments (Pty) Ltd
Princedale Investment Holdings (Pty) Ltd
Neill Michael Hobbs
Johan Slabber, resigned 13 October 2017
Hobbs Sinclair Advisory (Pty) Ltd

Members of key management
Other related entities of key management

Related party balances and transactions with entities with control, joint control or significant influence over the
company
Related party balances
Amounts included in Trade receivable (Trade Payable) regarding related parties
Anuva Investments (Pty) Ltd

(12,596)

Related party transactions
Consulting fees paid to (received from) related parties
Anuva Investments (Pty) Ltd

162,417

Related party balances and transactions with other related parties
Related party transactions
Accounting fees paid to (received from) related parties
Hobbs Sinclair Advisory (Pty) Ltd

42,404

Preliminary expenses paid to (received from) related parties
Hobbs Sinclair Advisory (Pty) Ltd

15
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Tax Computation
2017
R

Net profit per income statement

7,359

Permanent differences (Non-deductible/Non taxable items)
Preliminary expenses not incurred in the production of income

51,000

Temporary differences
Depreciation according to financial statements
Wear and tear allowance (s11(e))

1,425
(1,425)
-

Taxable income for 2017

58,359

Tax thereon @ 28% in the Rand

16,341

Reconciliation of tax balance
Tax owing/(prepaid) for the current period:
Normal tax
Per calculation
1st provisional payment
2nd provisional payment
Other payments

16,341
-

Amount owing/(prepaid) at the end of year

16,341
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